Public Document Pack

Notice of Meeting

Western Area

PI an n i n g CO m m ittee documents for this meeting
Wednesday 10 August 2022 at 6.30pm

INn the Council Chamber Council Offices
Market Street Newbury

This meeting will be streamed live here: https://imww.westberks.gov.uk/westernareaplanninglive

You can view all streamed Council meetings here:
https://mwww.westberks.gov.uk/councilmeetingslive

if members of the public wish to attend the meeting they can do so either remotely or in person.
Members of the public who wish to speak at the meeting must notify the Planning Team by no
later than 4.00pm on Tuesday 9 August 2022 by emailing planningcommittee @westberks.gov.uk.

Members Interests

Note: If you consider you may have an interest in any Planning Application included on this
agenda then please seek early advice from the appropriate officers.

Date of despatch of Agenda: Tuesday, 2 August 2022

Further informationfor members of the public

Plans and photographs relating to the Planning Applications to be considered at the meeting
can be viewed by clicking on the link on the front page of the relevant report.

For further information about this Agenda, or to inspect any background documents referred to
in Part | reports, please contact the Planning Team on (01635) 519148 or email:
planningcommittee @westberks.gov.uk.

Further information, Planning Applications and Minutes are also available on the Council’s
website at www.westberks.gov.uk.

Any queries relating to the Committee should be directed to the Democratic Services Team by
emailing executivecycle @westberks.gov.uk.



https://www.westberks.gov.uk/westernareaplanninglive
https://www.westberks.gov.uk/councilmeetingslive
mailto:planningcommittee@westberks.gov.uk
mailto:planningcommittee@westberks.gov.uk
http://www.westberks.gov.uk/

Agenda - Western Area Planning Committee to be held on Wednesday, 10 August 2022
(continued)

To: Councillors Clive Hooker (Chairman), Tony Vickers (Vice-Chairman),
Adrian Abbs, Phil Barnett, Dennis Benneyworth, Jeff Cant, Carolyne Culver,
Claire Rowles and Howard Woollaston

Substitutes: Councillors Jeff Beck, James Cole, Lynne Doherty, David Marsh,
Steve Masters, Andy Moore, Erik Pattenden and Martha Vickers

Agenda

Part | Page No.

1. Apologies
To receive apologies for inability to attend the meeting (if any).

2. Minutes 5-24

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of this
Committee held on 20 July 2022.

3. Declarations of Interest
To remind Members of the need to record the existence and nature of any
personal, disclosable pecuniary or other registrable interests initems on
the agenda, in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct.

4. Schedule of Planning Applications
(Note: The Chairman, with the consent of the Committee, reserves the right
to alter the order of business on this agenda based on public interest and
participation in individual applications).

(1) Application No. and Parish: 21/01843/HOUSE, West Woodhay 25-78
Proposal: Section 73 variation / removal of condition 3
(approved plans) of approved 18/01441/HOUSE -
Demolition of garden store. External alterations to
the Eastern Pavilion including the provision of
rooflights (Retrospective). Erection of new Western
Pavilion to provide home office facilities at ground
level, guest accommodation at first floor and a
basement level garage.

Location: Lake House (formerly Hayward Green Farm), West
Woodhay Road, West Woodhay, Newbury, West
Berkshire, RG20 0BU.

Applicant: Mr. C. Brown.

¥ West Berkshire



http://info.westberks.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=38477&p=0

Agenda - Western Area Planning Committee to be held on Wednesday, 10 August 2022

(continued)

Recommendation: = DELEGATE to the Service Director — Development
and Regulation to make representations at appeal
that planning permission should be granted
subject to conditions together with the authority to
negotiate or amend those conditions during the
course of the appeal.

Background Papers

(a)
(b)
(©
(d)
(e)

The West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.

The West Berkshire District Local Plan (Saved Policies September 2007), the
Replacement Minerals Local Plan for Berkshire, the Waste Local Plan for Berkshire and
relevant Supplementary Planning Guidance and Documents.

Any previous planning applications for the site, together with correspondence and
report(s) on those applications.

The case file for the current application comprising plans, application forms,
correspondence and case officer's notes.

The Human Rights Act.

&a_tak ChaCe .

Sarah Clarke
Service Director — Strategy & Governance
West Berkshire District Council

If you require this information in a differentformat or translation, please contact

Stephen Chard on (01635) 519462.

¥ West Berkshire




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 2.
DRAFT

Note: These Minutes will remain DRAFT until approved at the next meeting of the Committee

WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON
WEDNESDAY, 20 JULY 2022

Councillors Present: Clive Hooker (Chairman), Tony Vickers (Vice-Chairman), Adrian Abbs,

Phil Barnett, Jeff Cant, Carolyne Culver, Howard Woollaston and James Cole (Substitute) (In
place of Dennis Benneyworth) (as substitute)

Also Present: Sharon Armour (Solicitor), Paul Goddard (Team Leader - Highways
Development Control), Masie Masiiwa (Senior Planning Officer), Simon Till (Principal Planning
Officer (Team Leader)) and Sadie Owen (Principal Democratic Services Officer)

Apologies for inability to attend the meeting: Councillor Dennis Benneyworth and Councillor
Claire Rowles

9. Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 8 June 2022 were approved as a true and correct
record and signed by the Chairman.

The minutes of the meeting on 29 June 2022 were approved as a correct record and
signed by the Chairman, subject to the following amendments:-

Paragraph 77 - Councillor Adrian Abbs stated that his calculations had differed to the
officer's due to Members having received incorrect information.

Paragraph 78 - Councillor Abbs further commented that he had drawn a comparison with
Newbury Racecourse where one of the most regular criticisms was that there was
insufficient provision for disabled parking. He had further suggested that figures should
be rounded up rather than rounded down.

10. Declarations of Interest

Councillor Phil Barnett declared an interest in Agenda ltem 4(3), by virtue of the fact that
he was a Member of Newbury Town Council and Greenham Parish Council. Councillor
Barnett also stated that he had been lobbied both for and against the application, but
reported that, as his interest was a personal or an other registrable interest, but not a
disclosable pecuniary interest, he determined to remain to take part in the debate and
vote on the matter.

Councillor Abbs declared an interest in Agenda ltem 4(3), by virtue of the fact that he was
a Member of Greenham Parish Council. Further, Councillor Abbs reported that he lived
one mile away from the proposed application site and had been lobbied both for and
against the application, but commented that, as his interest was a personal or an other
registrable interest, but not a disclosable pecuniary interest, he determined to remain to
take part in the debate and vote on the matter.

Councillors Clive Hooker, Howard Woollaston, Tony Vickers and Carolyne Culver
declared an interest in Agenda ltem 4(3), by virtue of the fact that they had received an
email from a local resident seeking support for the application, but reported that, as their
interest was a personal or an other registrable interest, but not a disclosable pecuniary
interest, they determined to remain to take part in the debate and vote on the matter.

11. Schedule of Planning Applications

Page 5



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20 JULY 2022 - MINUTES
(1)  Application No. and Parish:22/00160/OUTMAJ - Land off
LambournRoad, Speen, Newbury
Agenda ltem 4(1), was withdrawn from the Committee post publication of the Agenda.
(2) Application No. and Parish:21/01843/HOUSE - Lake House

(formerly Hayward Green Farm), West Woodhay Road, West
Woodhay

Agenda ltem 4(2), was withdrawn from the Committee post publication of the Agenda.

(3) Application No. and Parish:22/00658/COMIND - Newbury
Racecourse, Racecourse Road, Newbury

1. The Committee considered a report (Agenda ltem 4(3)) concerning Planning
Application 22/00658/COMIND in respect of a proposed Temporary 1 year
permission at Newbury Racecourse for a Great Newbury Christmas Carnival (with
attractions including market stalls, bigtop, fairground rides, Christmas tree maze,

ice-rink, Santa's grotto).

2. Mr Masie Masiiwa introduced the report to Members, which took account of all the

relevant policy considerations and other material planning considerations.

3. As a point of order Councillor Jeff Cant queried whether, as the refused application
21/01079/COMIND was currently the subject of an appeal to the Planning
Inspectorate, the appeal status should be awaited prior to reviewing the current

application.

4.  Mr Simon Till, Team Leader (Western Area Planning), explained that the applicant
was within their rights to apply pending the result of the appeal. He commented that
it was for Members to decide the application and make a decision regardless of the

appeal.

5. The Chairman asked Mr Paul Goddard, Principal Development Control Engineer, if
he had any observations relating to the application. Mr Goddard reported that the
access arrangements, which had been of significant concern in the original
application, had been substantially resolved thanks to the organisers working with
the Council. Conditions attached to the application made provision for a shuttle bus

and for a travel plan to be submitted both before and after the event.

6. In accordance with the Council's Constitution, Martin Sanderson, Tom Nisbet and
Liz Turner, objectors, Melissa Hughes, supporter, Julian Thick, Dani Fumicelli and

Coral Curtis applicant/agent, addressed the Committee on this application.
Objector Representation

7. Mr Sanderson in addressing the Committee raised the following points:

o Mr Sanderson commented that he spoke on behalf of the resident objectors, all of
whom appreciated that they lived in the vicinity of an events venue. However, he
asserted that to allow the proposed application would increase the number of event
dates from 31 race events to an additional 35 Carnival dates per year. Mr
Sanderson argued that this would effectively switch the majority use of the

racecourse from racing events to Carnival events.

o Mr Sanderson acknowledged that if there were no fairground rides, there would be

no objection to the application.

Page 6



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20 JULY 2022 - MINUTES

o Mr Sanderson commented that the revised application only amounted to a 3%
reduction in opening hours.

o It was alleged that the traffic impact to local residents remained unchanged from the
previous application and there was insufficient information in relation to local
access.

o Mr Sanderson suggested that heavy good vehicles transporting the rides and stalls
to the site would cause increased traffic and congestion, as would the level of daily
visitors to the event.

o Mr Sanderson noted that David Wilson Homes had recently received approval for
an application to build apartments at the ‘bridge’ end of the event and that it was
expected that building works would commence at the same time as the proposed
Carnival.

o Mr Sanderson commented that the noise assessments accompanying the
application were largely based on predictions rather than actual evidence. He
further argued that trees would provide no sound protection.

o Mr Sanderson suggested that the generators detailed would not be sufficient to run
the rides, music and lighting proposed.

o In relation to the car parks, Mr Sanderson commented that Car Parks 1 and 5
already caused a substantial impact to residents on race days due to the floodlights
and the gravel surface.

o Mr Sanderson argued that comparison with Hyde Park’s Winter Wonderland was
pointless as there were no residential properties in the vicinity of Hyde Park.

o Mr Sanderson suggested that the lighting report was low on detail as a number of
ride specifics had not been included.

. Mr Sanderson noted that there had been no assessment of the environmental
impact of the application and no assessment of any flood risk.

o Mr Sanderson felt that the economic benefit to Newbury as a town would be
negligible as he anticipated that visitors would make use of the hotel facilities at the
racecourse rather than venturing into Newbury.

o Mr Sanderson argued that as freeholders of the properties, the racecourse had a
duty of care to provide a peaceful and healthy environment to residents living there.

Member Questions to the Objector

8. Councillor Carolyne Culver queried whether residents were provided with a
prospective number of event days as part of their leasehold agreement.

Ms Turner clarified that it was part of the sale particulars rather than within the
specific agreement. Ms Turner commented that race days were not an issue and
that many residents participated in the events, the concern arose at the proposed
additional 35 days of Carnival which would cause 14 hours disturbance each day.

9. In relation to a query from Councillor Adrian Abbs, Mr Sanderson clarified that the
135 metres related to the distance from the southern boundary of the site to the
southern boundary of the trees.

10. Councillor Phil Barnett queried what sort of size event would be acceptable to the
residents.

Page 7



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20 JULY 2022 - MINUTES

Mr Sanderson drew a comparison with Winchester Christmas Market and
suggested that something similar without all of the fairground rides would be more
acceptable.

11. Councillor Barnett queried the type of disturbance that might be caused by Car
Parks 4 and 5.

Mr Sanderson reported that a number of residents did not have curtains and so the
portable floodlights were quite intrusive as was the sound of the gravel surface of
Car Park 5 which Mr Sanderson asserted could be heard above the sound of a
television.

12. Councillor James Cole queried the assertion that trees would not provide any
protection against noise.

Mr Sanderson confirmed that at a recent site visit Mr Thick had himself confirmed
that they provided no sound protection to the residents in Mandarin Drive.

13. In response to a query by Councillor Cant, Ms Turner commented that whilst some
residents had been consulted by the racecourse operator and its agent, not all local
residents had been.

Supporter Representation
14. Ms Melissa Hughes in addressing the Committee raised the following points:

o Ms Hughes introduced herself as a representative of Newbury Business
Improvement District (BID), whose role was to improve the trading environment of
Newbury and its growing reputation, and to establish it as a ‘go to’ destination for
businesses and visitors in the south.

o Ms Hughes commented that there was widespread support and demand for
community centred events such as the proposed Carnival and argued that it would
create jobs and employment benefits.

. It was felt that the Carnival would help benefit the growing reputation of Newbury.
Ms Hughes argued that the Council needed to be bold and to put Newbury on to the
map.

o Ms Hughes argued that nurturing and supporting the local economy was consistent
with the National Planning Policy Framework as well as the philosophy, aims and
objectives of the Council's adopted Core Strategy.

o It was suggested that the benefits that the Carnival would bring to Newbury and the
surrounding West Berkshire area would be substantial and should, from Newbury
BID’s perspective, tip the balance towards planning permission being granted.

o Ms Hughes read the following statement on behalf of local resident, Mr Paul
Marden:

‘My wife and | visited the racecourse apartments in March 2014 and were
immediately drawn by the stunning views around the site. We were told at the time
that we would be buying a property on a business site and that various events apart
from the racing would take part during the year. We have enjoyed every moment
here. The Great Christmas Carnival promises to be not only a great event for the
racecourse but for Newbury as a whole with a lot more people in the town
supporting our local businesses. | can understand concerns based on last year’s
application but feel that the new temporary one year application is a real
improvement. Most of the action is at the far end of the racecourse away from the
vast majority of the housing. After the ups and downs of the pandemic it would be a

Page 8



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20 JULY 2022 - MINUTES

great pick-me up and build up to Christmas, with opportunities for participation by
local youth groups and schools. We have a station right outside and lots of parking
at the venue and | do hope that Newbury is able to host the Christmas Carnival.

Member Questions to the Supporter

15. Councillor Barnett referenced Ms Hughes use of the term ‘destination Newbury and

16.

17.

18.

qgueried how it could be guaranteed that visitors to the event would benefit the town
and businesses as a whole.

Ms Hughes acknowledged that it was not possible to provide guarantees but
promised to work closely with the racecourse to develop a strategy to market not
just the event but Newbury town as a whole. The shuttle bus service was
anticipated to facilitate this. It was hoped that visitors to the town would then come
back throughout the year and benefit the economy in the long term as well as the
short term.

Councillor Vickers felt that Newbury as the leading destination in the south at
Christmas was too ambitious.

Ms Hughes clarified that the ambition was to be one of the leading destinations, but
that there was no reason why it should not be Newbury given its prime location and
easy accessibility.

Councillor Abbs commented that he struggled to understand how visitors arriving
either by train or car would then be enticed into the town.

Ms Hughes commented that it would be facilitated by the marketing and signposting
of the event, and using this to draw visitors into the town.

Further to a query from Councillor Cant, Ms Hughes clarified that there would be
shuttle buses at the Carnival to take visitors to and from the town centre.

Applicant/Agent Representation

19.

Mr Julian Thick of Newbury Racecourse, in addressing the Committee raised the
following points:

Mr Thick reported that following the original application, the applicant had looked to
improve the scheme and respond positively to the concerns raised by local
residents.

As a consequence, Mr Thick argued that there was overwhelming local support for
the Carnival, with 86% of the 292 respondents wanting the event to go ahead. Mr
Thick commented that of those, 112 were resident in Greenham Parish, and 73% of
them were supportive, with 72% stating that they were likely to visit.

Mr Thick suggested that the Carnival would have a positive impact on both
Newbury and West Berkshire’s economy.

Mr Thick noted that diversification had always been part of the racecourse’s
business model.

Mr Thick contested that the racecourse had a track record of working well with the
Council and local stakeholders to solve issues.

Mr Thick reported that the proposed event would fit within the racecourse’s current
licensing regime in terms of noise, lighting and duration.

It was noted that the application was for a one year trial as the team were confident
that it could be a success for all stakeholders.

Page 9



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20 JULY 2022 - MINUTES

o Mr Thick commented that extensive survey work had been undertaken, given that
noise was one of the main areas of concern. Further, the size of the site had been
reduced.

o Mr Thick reported that sound systems would be carefully designed and controlled,
and that the approach had been discussed and approved by the Environmental
Health team.

o it was reported that the site would be centrally controlled by Underbelly (racecourse
partners), with no ride operator having control of their own sound system.

o Mr Thick noted that the event was forecast to average 6,000 visitors a day,
compared to a race day capacity of 36,000 visitors.

o It was reported that the ‘no parking’ measures used to protect residents on race
days would be repeated throughout the duration of the Carnival. Further, additional
trains would be scheduled by Great Western Railway, as for race days.

o Mr Thick commented that Underbelly was a very strong partner with a wealth of
experience at organising similar high quality events.

o Mr Thick suggested that the Great Christmas Carnival had the opportunity to
become one of the leading festive events in the UK, putting Newbury on the map.

o Mr Thick suggested that the event would be popular and would bring substantial
economic benefits to both the racecourse and to the town.

o Mr Thick reported that all concerns raised by Members in relation to the previous
application had been fully addressed and requested as such that the current
application be approved.

Member Questions to the Applicant/Agent

20. In response to a query from Councillor Abbs, Mr Fumicelli of Vanguardia, explained
that there would need to be a 10 decibel (dB) change in sound to double volume.

Mr Fumicelli reported that there was a national code of practice in place in relation
to sound levels at music festivals.

21. It was explained that 65 dB would be the lowest level likely to apply for a venue
such as Newbury Racecourse. Mr Fumicelli commented that concert noise levels
were significantly higher than that envisaged for the Carnival. Further, he reported
that all amplified sound on site would be centrally controlled. Mr Fumicelli reported
that the team were proposing a condition be attached to the application to set a
specific noise level and ‘cap’ at the boundary.

22. Councillor Abbs suggested that Vanguardia’s Draft Noise Assessment and
Management Plan incorrectly measured noise by placing receptors 270 metres
away from the site boundary rather than the 135 metres of Mandarin Drive. He
suggested that there would be a significant difference in relation to sound travelling
between the two.

Mr Fumicelli disputed that there was an error but contested that it was irrelevant as
the condition would control the noise level whatever the distance.

Mr Fumicelli explained that noise had been measured close to the Hyde Park
Winter Wonderland, not at the hotels in the vicinity, and had been recorded in order
to predict information for a similar event at Newbury. Mr Fumicelli attested that it
was inevitable that the noise levels for such an event would need to be predicted
given that it had not taken place before.

Page 10



23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20 JULY 2022 - MINUTES

Councillor Abbs suggested that the plans mentioned one generator, but the update
report referred to three generators. Councillor Abbs queried where the other
generators would be located.

Mr Fumicelli reported that the updated application assumed three generators,
grouped together to the western side of the site. The three would only operate
together at times of peak demand. It was reported that the generator noise would
be controlled through a plant noise condition. Mr Thick added that the noise of the
generators at the boundary would be minimal.

Councillor Woollaston commented that he had no doubt in relation to the economic
benefit of the proposal. He asked whether it would be possible to hear the sound of
the Carnival over the television as a resident of one of the racecourse flats.

Mr Fumicelli responded that he was confident that the sound would not be heard,
particularly as typical sound levels for watching television were 50 dB, which was
six times louder than the predicted level.

Councillor Barnett commented that a lot of properties surrounding the racecourse
were blocks of apartments and queried whether noise levels had been measured at
ground level or higher.

Mr Fumicelli clarified that measurements had been taken both at ground level and
elevated levels on the fourth floor. The noise had been 1dB higher on the fourth
floor.

In response to a query from Councillor Barnett as to the availability of trains in both
directions, Mr Thick reported that there would be communications in advance with
Great Western Trains in relation to crowd size and timings, and that additional trains
would be scheduled in both directions.

Councillor Cole queried whether trees would provide any noise protection to those
living in Mandarin Drive.

Mr Thick responded that the noise assessment report prepared by Vanguardia had
not taken into account trees as a factor.

Mr Fumicelli clarified that foliage would have an effect on noise where it was very
dense and thick, for example 50-100 metres of dense conifers. Mr Fumicelli
explained that his calculation had assumed a clear line of sight for the sake of
clarity.

Councillor Vickers commented that weather would also effect sound, and queried
how likely the cold weather would be to have an impact.

Mr Fumicelli commented that the most notable effect of weather was likely to be
strong winds, but that the effect would be most noticeable at 2-3km away from the
main site. It was suggested that the separation distance at the proposed site would
be negligible. Mr Fumicelli stated that in his calculations he had assumed the most
favourable conditions for noise travel.

Councillor Cant queried which result the team would pursue if they were successful
at Committee and at appeal.

Mr Thick responded that he would commit to the application, if successful.

In response to a query raised by Councillor Abbs, Mr Fumicelli explained that
baseline monitor measurements had been taken at Mandarin Drive, Frankel House
and Lamtarra Way. They provided representative values in order to assess the
impact to all surrounding properties. Mr Fumicelli explained that the baseline

Page 11



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20 JULY 2022 - MINUTES

measurements were then compared to the nine assessment locations around the
racecourse. Monitoring was undertaken for a week.

31. Councillor Abbs commented that Frankel House was on the corner of a road and
that anyone driving at speed would create more noise, and that it was also the turn-
in road for a lot of residents living in the flats.

Mr Fumicelli commented that he was confident that it was representative and added
that he had discussed the location with Environmental Health Officers and local
authority officers.

32. Councillor Abbs suggested that the peak readings taken at Frankel House
appeared to be the approximate noise levels of a car and queried whether the team
were confident that the baseline measurements would be within the acceptable
bounds.

Mr Fumicelli confirmed that he was.
Ward Member Representation

33. Councillor Barnett in addressing the Committee raised the following points:

o Councillor Barnett stated that he was saddened that there was no representative
from Newbury Town Council or Greenham Parish Council at the meeting.

o Councillor Barnett acknowledged that Newbury Racecourse was one of the gems of
the South and he wanted to see the organisation succeed. However he noted that
the event under discussion was outside the normal activities of the racecourse and
consequently needed to satisfy certain criteria, not only for attendees of the event,
but the surrounding residents.

o Councillor Barnett highlighted some of the concerns that had been raised to him by
ward residents. He suggested that whilst the site of the proposed application had
been re-configured from the original application, it could potentially impact more
residents.

o Councillor Barnett suggested that the noise level assessment appeared to be the
same as the original application.

o Councillor Barnett suggested that the high fairground ride was likely to be seen
clearly from miles around.

o Councillor Barnett commented that assembling and dismantling the rides was likely
to cause considerable disturbance to surrounding roads and it was not known how
long this would take.

o Councillor Barnett commented that cleaning of the site and the toilets had not been
mentioned, but would also have an effect on the local residents.

o Councillor Barnett suggested that November could be a wet month and
consequently there was a threat of flooding.

o Councillor Barnett stated that fuel costs had rocketed and so how likely was it that
people would travel to the event, or to the town.

o Councillor Barnett commented that the impact to the residents in Mandarin Drive
and Carruthers Court would definitely be felt.

Member Questions to the Ward Member

34. Members did not have any questions of clarification.
Member Questions to Officers

Page 12



35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20 JULY 2022 - MINUTES

Councillor Abbs queried why in the previous application the funfair noise had been
described as ‘will be played at a level not audible from the site boundary’ and in the
update report stated ‘controlled centrally and played at a level that does not give
rise to adverse effects beyond the site boundary’.

Ms Kate Powell, Environmental Health Officer, commented that it was a change in
how the details had been presented and would not affect the noise levels. In
response to Councillor Abbs querying whether the wording could revert to the
original application, Ms Powell commented that she would be happy to do so,
should it be requested.

In response to a query from Councillor Vickers, Mr Masiiwa clarified that the two
comparison site plans featured in the presentation were drawn to different scales.

Councillor Vickers queried how the assertion that the Carnival would improve the
social infrastructure of local residents could be justified.

Mr Masiiwa commented that it referred to bullet point 3 of policy CS2 which referred
to the racecourse being a strategic site allocation.

Mr Till clarified that when reviewing applications, officers would evaluate social,
economic and environmental considerations, and anything offering recreational
activities either to the local community or local and wider community would be
providing social benefit. He commented that an application might also cause
detriment but the two needed to be distinguished from one another rather than
stating that one negated the other.

Councillor Vickers queried the anticipated impact of the David Wilson Homes
development. Mr Goddard felt that any impact would be minimal, as the racecourse
bridge had been modelled based on a full housing development of 1,463 units and
a Newbury Racecourse event day.

Councillor Barnett queried whether heavy goods vehicles transporting rides and
delivering to the site were expected to use Greenham Road. Mr Goddard confirmed
that the route was correct, and that all current events at the racecourse used the
same route.

Councillor Barnett queried whether officers would be imposing conditions for site
deliveries. Mr Goddard commented that should Members wish to impose a
condition restricting traffic during set up and taking down of the Carnival then it was
their prerogative. He did note however that there would be no visitors during such
times.

Councillor Barnett queried whether the Chairman felt that the update report
contained sufficient information to allay fears relating to drainage issues at the site.

Councillor Clive Hooker noted that Members had requested that a Sustainable
Drainage System (SuDS) Officer be in attendance at the meeting but unfortunately
he had not been able to attend due to personal reasons.

Mr Till highlighted an error at section 6.5 of the original application report that stated
‘the proposal would not have an adverse impact on flood risk and would fail to
comply’ and should have read ‘..would not have an adverse impact on flood risk that
would fail to comply'.

Mr Till reported that the drainage team had been consulted and that it had been
accepted that the works were temporary with relation to a flood risk assessment, on
the proviso that a flood risk assessment and a scheme of sustainable drainage
measures should be submitted in order to mitigate any surface water at the site.

Page 13



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20 JULY 2022 - MINUTES

Officers had also requested the inclusion of an additional condition requesting that
sustainable drainage systems be put in place prior to any works commencing.

43. Councillor Hooker queried whether a transport travel plan could be submitted prior
to the event to provide advance notice and allow for some traffic management. Mr
Goddard commented that this would be acceptable subject to the consent of the
planning and legal officers.

44. Councillor Abbs queried whether there had been any discussions in relation using
Car Parks 2 or 3. Mr Goddard clarified that they would continue to be used by the
hotel and so would not be available.

45. Councillor Abbs referred to page 30 of the Vanguardia Draft Noise Assessment and
Management Plan report and asked Ms Powell to confirm whether it referred to 270
or 135 metres. Ms Powell commented that the table had been included to predict
the level of noise of the crowd offsite, using noise levels for different types of
speech and projecting them to different sites from the noise. Ms Powell confirmed
that it referred to 270 metres.

46. Councillor Abbs queried whether the distance gave any cause for concern given
that the first reference point of Mandarin Drive was 150 metres. Ms Powell did not
have concerns in relation to noise of the crowds attending. Ms Powell felt that
potentially the noise would be audible from the surrounding area, but did not
anticipate unreasonable noise levels atthe residential properties.

47. Councillor Barnett queried whether there had been any recommendation in relation
to the positioning of the portable toilets and their cleaning schedule. Ms Powell
commented that the environmental health team would not have considered this
matter, but that it was something that could be dealt with reactively if there were any
Issues at the time of the event.

48. Mr Goddard clarified that Car Parks 2 and 3 had been retained for sole use of the
hotel, nursery and racecourse staff, and would not be in use for the Carnival event.

Debate

49. Councillor Abbs opened the debate by commenting that there were lots of
concerns, many of which had flowed through from the previous application.

Councillor Hooker reminded Councillor Abbs to focus on the fact that the current
application was for one year rather than five.

50. Councillor Abbs suggested that it was unavoidable that there would be an impact to
residents. Councillor Abbs voiced disappointment that both Car Parks 2 and 3 had
been retained for the hotel, and suggested that a condition be included to only use
Car Park 5 once Car Park 4 was full.

51. Councillor Abbs expressed a preference for including a condition in relation to the
build up and take down times, and also requested a return to the original wording
relating to the funfair noise.

52. Councillor Abbs suggested that it was critical that the generators were kept as far
away from residents as possible.

On balance, Councillor Abbs suggested that he was likely to vote in favour of the
application, as long as certain aspects could be conditioned.

53. Councillor Vickers felt that Members needed to take account of the BID’s evidence,
but was more alarmed than pleased at being compared to an event in Hyde Park
with 90,000 visitors.

Page 14



54.

55.

56.

S57.

58.

59.

60.

61.

62.

63.
64.

WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20 JULY 2022 - MINUTES

Councillor Vickers commented that it was a difficult application as it was hard to find
a precedent or comparison that could help inform the decision making. Councillor
Vickers felt that to approve the application would provide an element of control that
would be if the application was rejected.

Councillor Vickers felt that the Council should allow a one year trial and that the
applicant deserved it. He acknowledged that there would be some impact on the
residents but suggested that it may be covered by the term ’caveat emptor,
particularly as the outline planning consent and Local Plan deemed the event within
the terms of the planning policy.

Councillor Hooker further added that Council policies supported the racehorse
industry.

Councillor Cant commented that he was supportive of Councillor Vickers approach,
and did not feel it suitable to micro manage an application through the imposition of
conditions.

Councillor Cant commented that the concerns raised by the previous application
appeared to have been comprehensively dealt with and was encouraged by the
results of the residents’ survey report, although understood the reservations of the
objectors.

Councillor Cant commented that on balance he would support the application.

Councillor Barnett commented that he still had reservations particularly as a Ward
Member. He commented that he would like to see the racecourse succeed, but was
doubtful for itto be at the expense of local residents.

Councillor Barnett anticipated that the application would find favour but commented
that he would not support it. Councillor Barnett hoped that there would be sufficient
conditions added to the application to lessen the impact to residents, and
demonstrate that it had been given a fair hearing.

Councillor Cole commented that whilst the economy was suffering from a downturn,
people were still traveling and that ‘destination Newbury' should be given an
opportunity. He felt that the facilities of the shuttle bus service and train station
made the location ideal.

Councillor Cole commented that the application was for one year and that if the
event did fail to adhere to the stipulations promised then it would not be approved
again.

Councillor Cole proposed to accept the officer's recommendation and grant
planning permission subject to the conditions listed in the main report and update
report. This was seconded by Councillor Woollaston.

Councillor Hooker commented that the debate had been very useful.
Mr Till provided a reminder of the conditions that had been discussed:

Construction Method Statement, relating to regulation of deliveries and regulating
traffic during the set up and take down stage of the event.

Councillors Cole and Woollaston approved the condition.

Condition requiring that Car Park 5 be used only when Car Park 4 was full. In
response to a query from Councillor Cole as to whether this was felt necessary, Mr
Till suggested that the racecourse would probably be best placed to manage their
own parking sites, and that a parking management plan had been submitted as part
of the application.

Page 15



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20 JULY 2022 - MINUTES

Councillor Cole did not feel it necessary and Councillor Woollaston suggested that it
be included in as an informative as a preference but not a condition. Councillor Cole

agreed.

c. Funfair noise condition requiring that funfair noise ‘be played at a level not audible
beyond the site’s boundary’. Mr Till drew attention to the Environmental Health
Officers report of 5 February 2022 which detailed that the noise would be
‘controlled centrally and played at a level that does not give rise to adverse effects
beyond the site boundary’, and which had been felt sufficient and relied upon by
planning officers making the application recommendations.

Members were doubtful as to how achievable the first clause would be.

Councillors Cole and Woollaston rejected the proposal of changing the wording of
the condition.

d. Condition requiring that generators not be used until details of acoustic shielding of
the generators had been submitted and approved.

Councillors Cole and Woollaston approved the condition.

65. Mr Till noted that the National Planning Policy Framework required the applicant's
consent prior to imposing any pre-commencement planning condition, as for the
Construction Method Statement.

66. Mr Till reported that a SuDS condition had already been agreed by the applicant.

67. The Chairman invited Members of the Committee to vote on the proposal by
Councillor James Cole, seconded by Councillor Howard Woollaston to grant
planning permission. At the vote the motion was carried.

RESOLVED that: the Service Director for Development and Regulation be authorised to
grant planning permission subject to the above conditions and following conditions:

Conditions

1. Temporary permission (restoration)

The use hereby permitted shall be for a limited period being the period of 1 year from the
date of this decision. The use hereby permitted shall be discontinued and all structures,
materials and equipment brought on to the land in connection with the use, shall be
removed and the land restored to its former condition on or before 21 July 2023 in
accordance with a scheme of work that shall first have been submitted to and approved
in writing by the local planning authority.

Reason: The application has been assessed in relation to it being a temporary
permission. Planning permission would not normally be granted for the proposed
development in this location, however regard has been paid to the temporary nature of
the development and to allow time for noise measurements to be taken of the event and
to review any future events of this kind. This condition is imposed in accordance with the
National Planning Policy Framework, Policies CS 14 and CS 19 of the West Berkshire
Core Strategy (2006-2026) and Policies OVS5 and OVS6 of the West Berkshire District
Local Plan (1991-2006) Saved Policies 2007.

2. Approved plans
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
documents and drawings listed below:

Received on 14 March 2022

e Transport Statement
e Statement of Community Involvement

Page 16



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20 JULY 2022 - MINUTES

Servicing Delivery Plan

Planning Statement

Operations Management Plan

Draft Noise Assessment & Noise Management Plan
Luminesence Plan

Lighting Impact Report

Design and Access Statement

Proposed Big Wheel and Starflyer Elevations
Proposed Big Top Circus Elevation and Floor Plan
Proposed Carnival Layout

Proposed Site Plan

Levelling Plan

Site Section A

Site Section B

Site Section C

Ecological Information Cover Letter

Received on 25 April 2022
e Christmas Carnival Economic Impact Statement
Received on 23 May 2022

e Applicant response to Highways
e Cycle parking plan

Reason: Forthe avoidance of doubt and in the interest of proper planning

3. Protection from external noise

The development hereby permitted shall proceed in accordance with the noise
management plan and monitoring arrangements within the Draft Noise Assessment &
Noise Management Plan by Vanguardia Ltd and the Operations Management Plan by
Underbelly received on 14 March 2022.

a) The approved noise assessments, mitigations and monitoring shall be
implemented and adhered to in full throughout the event.

b) The applicant shall inform West Berkshire Public Protection (Environmental Health
Officers) and the Local Planning Authority in writing of any and all exceedances of
the predicted noise levels as soon as they are discovered and of any and all times
when the noise levels are calculated result in higher noise levels than those
detailed in conditions 7 and 8.

c) Any subsequent requests for planning permission for the event shall be
accompanied by noise surveys of the temporary event hereby permitted taken
from key noise receptors as part of a noise monitoring report outlining the findings
of the noise measurements and monitoring exercise during the event.

Reason: To protect occupiers of adjacent residential properties from excessive noise
levels from the noise generated by the event and to ensure a good standard of residential
amenity and to ensure the on-going management of noise from the permitted activities
and there is no result in undue levels of noise and disturbance to the occupiers of
neighbouring residential properties. This condition is applied in accordance with the
National Planning Policy Framework, Policies ADPP1, ADPP2, CS14 and CS19 of the
West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026), Supplementary Planning Document Quality
Design (June 2006) and Policies OVS5 and OVS6 of the West Berkshire District Local
Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

Page 17



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20 JULY 2022 - MINUTES

4. Protection from external lighting

The development hereby permitted shall proceed in accordance with the Light Impact
Report by Neil Johnson Consultants and the Luminesence Plan received on 14 March
2022.

Reason: To protect occupiers of adjacent residential properties from excessive light
pollution from the event to ensure a good standard of residential amenity and to ensure
the on-going management of lighting from the permitted activities and there is no result in
undue levels of light pollution to the occupiers of neighbouring residential properties.
This condition is applied in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework,
Policies ADPP1, ADPP2, CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-
2026), Supplementary Planning Document Quality Design (June 2006) and Policies
OVS5 and OVS6 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies
2007).

5. Hours of operation

The use of the development hereby permitted is restricted to the following hours of
operation:

e Monday to Wednesday: 12:00 - 21:00
(Except closed Mondays, Christmas period and race days.)
e Thursdays: 12:00 — 21:00
e Fridays — Saturdays: 10:00 — 22:00
(Except Christmas eve with an 18:00hrs finish and race days with a 16:00 hrs start)
e Sundays: 10:00 —21:00
(Except New Year’s day with a 12:00hrs start)
e The times apply regardless of bank holidays

After the four race days that are scheduled during the event period, the Carnival would
only be openfrom 16:00 — 22:00 hrs. During the week leading up to Christmas, the
event will start at 10:00 hrs.

Reason: To ensure the on-going management of noise from the permitted activities
within the site do not result in undue levels of noise and disturbance to the occupiers of
neighbouring residential properties. This condition is applied in accordance with the
National Planning Policy Framework, Policies ADPP1, ADPP2, CS14 and CS19 of the
West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026), Supplementary Planning Document Quality
Design (June 2006) and Policies OVS5 and OVS6 of the West Berkshire District Local
Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

6. Setup and breakdown of the event

Except where written approval has been granted by West Berkshire Council or in the
event of an engineering emergency or for reasons of health and safety, works relating to
the setup and breakdown of the event shall only take place from 0800 to 1800 hrs
Monday to Friday and from 0900 to 1300 hrs on Saturdays. No works shall take place on
Saturday afternoons, Sundays or Public Holidays.

Reason: To protect occupiers of surrounding residential properties against unreasonable
noise levels. This condition is applied in accordance with the National Planning Policy
Framework, Policies ADPP1, ADPP2, CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core
Strategy (2006-2026), Supplementary Planning Document Quality Design (June 2006)
and Policies OVS5 and OVS6 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006
(Saved Policies 2007).

7. Amplified Sound
The level of noise from amplified sound assessed using the LAeq,15 min metric under
free-field conditions shall not exceed a value more than 5 decibels above the LA90, T

Page 18



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20 JULY 2022 - MINUTES

background noise level at the locations in the table below, or any other noise sensitive
location beyond the racecourse boundary. Furthermore, the equivalent LCeq,15 min level
of amplified sound assessed under free-field conditions shall not exceed the values at the
locations in the table below, or any other noise sensitive location beyond the racecourse
boundary

Location Representative LA90,15 | LCeq,15 min dB
min background noise
level (dBA) — Day time
(0700 to 2300 hrs)

Mandarin Drive 45 62

Executive Homes 46 66

Reason: To protect occupiers of surrounding residential properties against unreasonable
noise levels generated by the event and to ensure a good standard of residential amenity
and to ensure the on-going management of noise from the permitted activities. This
condition is applied in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, Policies
ADPP1, ADPP2, CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026),
Supplementary Planning Document Quality Design (June 2006) and Policies OVS5 and
OVS6 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

8. Plant Noise

The BS 4142:2014 rating level of noise from plant and machinery shall not exceed a
value more than 5 decibels above the LA90, T background noise level at the locations in
the table below, or at any other nearest noise sensitive receptor:

Period Modal LA90, 15min (dB)

Mandarin Drive Executive Homes | Lamtarra Way
Daytime 45 45 41
Night time 39 39 32

Reason: To protect occupiers of surrounding residential properties against unreasonable
noise levels generated by the event and to ensure a good standard of residential amenity
and to ensure the on-going management of noise from the permitted activities. This
condition is applied in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, Policies
ADPP1, ADPP2, CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026),
Supplementary Planning Document Quality Design (June 2006) and Policies OVS5 and
OVS6 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

9. Shuttle bus service

Prior to the first day of operation of the Carnival event, details of the shuttle bus service
to be provided shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority.

a) The shuttle bus service shall be provided for all events in accordance with the
approved details unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority.

b) A shuttle bus should be operational from the town centre and rail station whilst the
Carnival is operational for the first 10 days of the carnival (when not racing).

c) The details of the shuttle bus shall include timetables and publication strategy of
the timetables.

Page 19



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20 JULY 2022 - MINUTES

d) A review mechanism of the level of demand after those first 10 days and
contingency plans shall be submitted and approved in writing by the local planning
authority.

The development hereby approved shall not be brought into use until confirmation of how
the requirements of points (a),(b) and (c) above are delivered has been submitted and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The shuttle bus service shall thereafter be implemented and kept available for use at all
times during the event period. If provision of the shuttle bus service is terminated,
alternative arrangements shall be submitted and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the development is provided with adequate travel provisions, in order
to reduce reliance on private motor vehicles and reduce the likelihood of roadside parking
that would adversely affect road safety and the flow of traffic. This condition is applied in
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, Policy CS13 of the West
Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and Policy TRANS1 of the West Berkshire District
Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

10. Combined racing and carnival ticket on racedays

The carnival event hereby permitted shall only be accessed with a combined racing and
carnival ticket for the two busiest racedays (25th and 26th November 2022), unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority.

Reason: To ensure the development is provided with adequate parking facilities and
adequate travel provisions, in order to reduce reliance on private motor vehicles and
reduce the likelihood of roadside parking that would adversely affect road safety and the
flow of traffic. This condition is applied in accordance with the National Planning Policy
Framework, Policy CS13 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and Policy
TRANSL1 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

11. Temporary cycle parking
The carnival event’'s temporary cycle parking shall be implemented in accordance with
the cycle parking plan drawing No SK46 received on 23 May 2022.

Reason: To ensure the provision of cycle parking/storage facilities in order to encourage
the use of cycles and reduce reliance on private motor vehicles. This condition is applied
in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, Policy CS13 of the West
Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026, Policy P1 of the Housing Site Allocations DPD 2006-
2026, Quality Design SPD, and the Council's Cycle and Motorcycle Advice and
Standards for New Development (November 2014).

12.No concerts during the four racedays

No concerts shall take place during the four racedays covering the period of the Carnival
event hereby approved, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning
authority.

Reason: To ensure the development is provided with adequate parking facilities and
adequate travel provisions, in order to reduce reliance on private motor vehicles and
reduce the likelihood of roadside parking that would adversely affect road safety and the
flow of traffic. This condition is applied in accordance with the National Planning Policy
Framework, Policy CS13 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and Policy
TRANS1 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

The additional conditions are outlined below:

13.Access and parking provision details

Page 20



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20 JULY 2022 - MINUTES

The use hereby permitted shall be implemented as per the details submitted regarding
the direction of all traffic accessing the event and traffic management as approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority.
Thereafter the approved details shall be implemented in full during the event in
accordance with the approved plans.

Reason: To ensure the efficient function of the event, promote sustainable forms of
transport, promote highway safety and provides the appropriate level of vehicle parking
and traffic mitigation. The Public Transport Plan details were not finalised at the time of

determining the application. This condition is applied in accordance with the National
Planning Policy Framework, Policy CS13 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026, and
Policy TRANS1 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

14.Vehicle parking

The use shall not commence until details of the vehicle parking and turning areas have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such details
shall include the tarmac or reinforced turf circulation roads, along with improvements
ensuring accessibility during the winter months when the carnival will take place. The use
shall not commence until the vehicle parking and turning areas have been provided in
accordance with the approved details. The parking and turning space shall thereafter be
kept available for parking (of private motor cars and light goods vehicles) during the
course of the event.

Reason: To ensure the development is provided with adequate parking facilities in order
to reduce the likelihood of roadside parking which would adversely affect road safety and
the flow of traffic. This condition is applied in accordance with the National Planning
Policy Framework, Policy CS13 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and
Policy TRANS1 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies
2007).

15.Travel Plan

The use hereby permitted shall not commence until a final Public Transport Plan has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Public
Transport Plan shall include details of how public transport for event goers will be
managed from Newbury Town Centre and Newbury Rail Station to the event. The details
shall include timetables and frequency of the public transport service. Thereafter the
Public Transport Plan shall be implemented in full during the event in accordance with
the approved plans.

Reason: To ensure the efficient function of the event and promote sustainable forms of
transport and promote highway safety. The Public Transport Plan details were not
finalised at the time of determining the application. This condition is applied in
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, Policy CS13 of the West
Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026, and Policy TRANS1 of the West Berkshire District
Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

16.Post event Transport Assessment and Travel Plan

With the submission of any further planning application for any further Christmas carnival
events, a post event Transport Assessment and Travel Plan shall be submitted. The
submissions will detail how the event proceeded and how improvements can be made
going forward. The areas to be considered should include:

e Details of traffic volumes and visitor numbers per day

e Sernvicing and deliveries

Page 21



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20 JULY 2022 - MINUTES

Traffic management internally and within entrances to the site

e Signage strategy

e Impact and combination with other uses within the site such as race meetings and
other events

e Travel Plan including mode share data

Reason: To ensure the development reduces reliance on private motor vehicles and
provides the appropriate level of vehicle parking and traffic mitigation. This condition is
imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework 2019, Policies CS5
and CS13 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026), Policy TRANS1 of the West
Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007) and Local Transport Plan
3.

17.Sustainable drainage measures

No development shall take place until details of a flood risk assessment and sustainable
drainage measures to manage surface water during construction, carnival operation and
post event have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The sustainable drainage measures shall be informed by the outcome of the
flood risk assessment and shall include a schedule of works to take place for their
implementation.

A pre-commencement condition is necessary because insufficient detailed information
accompanies the application; sustainable drainage measures may require work to be
undertaken throughout the construction phase and so it is necessary to approve these
details before any development takes place.

Reason: To ensure that surface water will be managed in a sustainable manner; to
prevent the increased risk of flooding; to improve and protect water quality, habitat and
amenity and ensure future maintenance of the surface water drainage system can be,
and is carried out in an appropriate and efficient manner. This condition is applied in
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, Policy CS16 of the West
Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026), Part 4 of Supplementary Planning Document
Quality Design (2006) and SuDS Supplementary Planning Document (2018).

18. Construction method statement (CMS)

No development, including set up and breakdown of the event shall take place until a
Construction Method Statement (CMS) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the construction works, including set up and breakdown of
the event shall incorporate and be undertaken in accordance with the approved CMS. The CMS
shall include measures for:

(a) A site set-up plan during the set up and breakdown of the event works;
(b) Parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;

(c) Hours of deliveries and preferred haulage routes;

(d) Loading and unloading of plant and materials;

(e) Hours of construction work;

() Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development;

(g) Erection and maintenance of security hoarding including any decorative displays and/or
facilities for public viewing;

(h) Temporary access arrangements to the site, and any temporary hard-standing;

() Wheel washing facilities;

Page 22



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 20 JULY 2022 - MINUTES

() Measures to control dust, dirt, noise, vibrations, odours, surface water run-off, and
pests/vermin during construction;

(k) A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and construction
works;

Reason: To safeguard the amenity of adjoining land uses and occupiers, and in the interests of
highway safety. This condition is applied in accordance with the National Planning Policy
Framework, Policies CS13 and CS14 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026, and
Policies OVS.5, OVS.6 and TRANS.1 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006
(Saved Policies 2007). A precommencement condition is required because the CMS must be
adhered to during all demolition and construction operations.

19. Generator use

The generators to be used in the use hereby permitted shall not be first used until details of the
generator acoustic shielding have been submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved generator acoustic shielding details shall thereafter be retained for the
entire duration of the event's operation.

Reason: To protect occupiers of surrounding residential properties against unreasonable noise
levels generated by the event and to ensure a good standard of residential amenity and to ensure
the on-going management of noise from the permitted activities. This condition is applied in
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, Policies ADPP1, ADPP2, CS14 and
CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026), Supplementary Planning Document
Quiality Design (June 2006) and Policies OVS5 and OVS6 of the West Berkshire District Local
Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

Informatives
Approach of the LPA

This decision has been made in a positive way to foster the delivery of sustainable
development having regard to Development Plan policies and available guidance to
secure high quality appropriate development. In this application whilst there has been a
need to balance conflicting considerations, the local planning authority has worked
proactively with the applicant to secure and accept what is considered to be a
development which improves the economic, social and environmental conditions of the
area.

Traffic management and car park use
The traffic for each of the event days should be managed and operated so as to ensure that Car
Park 5 is only used once Car Park 4 is full.

(The meeting commenced at 6.30 pm and closed at 8.53 pm)

CHAIRMAN e

Date of Sighature

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



Agenda ltem

tem Application No.  Statutory Target
No. and Parish Date

Proposal, Location, Applicant

West Woodhay

@ 21/01843/HOUSE 31 August 20211 Section 73 variation/removal of

condition 3 (approved plans) of
approved 18/01441/HOUSE -
Demolition of garden store. External
alterations to the Eastern Pavilion
including the provision of rooflights
(Retrospective). Erection of new
Western Pavilion to provide home office
facilities at ground level, guest
accommodation at first floor and a
basement level garage.

Lake House (formerly Hayward Green
Farm), West Woodhay Road, West
Woodhay, Newbury, West Berkshire,
RG20 0BU.

Mr. C. Brown

! Extension of time agreed with applicant until 30 June 2022

The application can be viewed on the Council’s website at the following link:
http://planning.westberks.gov.uk/rpp/index.asp?caseref=21/01843/HOUSE

Recommendation Summary:

Ward Member(s):

Reason for Committee
Determination:

Committee Site Visit:

DELEGATE to the Service Director — Development

and Regulation to make representations at appeal
that planning permission should be granted

subject to conditions together with the authority to
negotiate or amend those conditions during the
course of the appeal.

Councillor Dennis Benneyworth, Councillor James Cole,
Councillor Claire Rowles.

More than 10 objections received.

04 August 2022

Contact Officer Details

Name:
Job Title:
Tel No:

Email:

Jake Brown

Principal Planning Officer
01635 519111
jake.brown@westberks.gov.uk

West Berkshire Council

Western Area Planning Committee

Page 25

10t August 2022

4.(1)


http://planning.westberks.gov.uk/rpp/index.asp?caseref=21/01843/HOUSE

1. Introduction

1.1 This is an item for decision in relation to appeal against non-determination pursuant to
planning application 21/01843/HOUSE. The applicants exercised their ability to appeal
against non-determination of the application, so the decision whether to grant planning
permission will be made by the Planning Inspectorate, not the Council. The decision of
the Committee on this item will determine the position the Council adopts at the appeal
(i.e. whether the Council supports or resists granting planning permission). This
decision should nonetheless be made on the basis of compliance with the Development
Plan and material considerations.

1.2 The application sought planning permission for amendments to the plans approved
under condition 3 of permission 18/01441/HOUSE granted for the demolition of garden
store; external alterations to the Eastern Pavilion including the provision of rooflights
(retrospective); erection of new Western Pavilion to provide home office facilities at
ground level, guest accommodation at first floor and a basement level garage.

1.3 The proposed amendments to the previous permission granted are:

e Alterations to the Eastern Pavilion comprising:

— Replacement of full height timber doors on western elevation with
windows and glazed entrance doorway;

— Replacement of full height timber door on eastern elevation with two
windows;

— Removal of window on ground floor of north elevation and replacement
of window on first floor with porthole style opening;

— Replacement of window on ground floor of south elevation with a glazed
doorway and replacement of window on first floor with porthole style
opening;

— Removal of staff accommodation on first floor;

— Stair altered to serve basement.

e Alterations to the Western Pavilion comprising:

— Replacement of full height timber doors on eastern elevation with
windows and glazed entrance doorway;

— Replacement of full height timber door on western elevation with two
windows and enlargement of approved windows;

— Removal of window on ground floor of north elevation and replacement
of window on first floor with porthole style opening;

— Replacement of window on ground floor of south elevation with a glazed
doorway and replacement of window on first floor with porthole style
opening;

— Stairway altered to serve basement.

e Reorientation and increase in the extent of the basement located under the
western pavilion from approximately 493sgm to 1426sgm, such that the
proposed basement would extend below and between both pavilions, across the
entire driveway area in front of the main dwelling.

e The basement previously approved comprised garaging for 8 vehicles, a plant
room, hall, car lift, turntable and underground passageway to the main house.
The basement now proposed would comprise: a wash bay; stairwell from the
western pavilion and lobby; archive storage; 2 plant rooms; car lift; parking for 6
vehicles; car turntable; 3 WCs;a TV room; stairwell from the eastern pavilion
and lobby; 2 changing rooms and a lobby; 2 wellness areas; sauna and steam

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 10t August 2022

Page 26



rooms; gym room; games room, utility room; a swimming pool; 3 store rooms
and a stair to the main house.

e As shown on the submitted section plans (drawing numbers 6038/PL12 Rev A
and 6038/PL13 Rev A) the previously approved basement floor was at a depth
of approximately 4.5m and 6m below ground level and the basement structure
was approximately 3.4m in height (including the floor and ceiling). The floor level
of the basement proposed in this application would be located between 5.5m
and 6.4m below ground level and the basement structure would be
approximately 5.5m in height (including the floor and ceiling). The agent has
confirmed that the proposed swimming pool within the basementwould be raised
and therefore there will be no additional depth to the basement to accommodate
the proposed swimming pool.

e The proposed car lift from the driveway to the basement would be located in
approximately the same location as that previously approved and would be
finished in the same material as that used on the driveway/forecourt.

1.4 It is important to note the previous application submitted to vary permission
18/01441/HOUSE (ref: 20/01694/HOUSE) which sought permission to alter the
fenestration in respect of the Eastern Pavilion only from that previously approved. As
detailed below, that application was refused and dismissed at appeal for reasons
discussed later in this report. The changes to the Eastern Pavilion proposed in this
application differ from that previously refused and dismissed at appeal for the following
reasons:

e A porthole type window is now proposed above the glazed doors on the southern
elevation;

e The porthole type window on the northern elevation is relocated to the first floor
level;

e The proposed rooflights on the eastern elevation are located closer to the ridge
of the pavilion building;

e The windows at ground floor level on the eastern and western elevations are
shorter in height;

e The WCis removed from the ground floor and the first floor will now form a void
to the ground floor.

1.5 The application was part retrospective due to some of the changes proposed to the
Eastern Pavilion having already been implemented at the site.

2. Planning History

2.1 The table below outlines the recent relevant planning history of the application site.

Application Proposal Decision/
Date
12/00408/CERTE Use of the dwelling for occupancy. Approved
26.04.2012
12/02892/FUL Replacement dwelling and garage block. Approved
05.05 2013
West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 10t August 2022

Page 27



13/01560/COND1 Condition discharge details for permissionref | Approved
12102892/FUL- - Replacement dwelling and 10.09.2013
garage block.
13/01949/FUL Replacement dwelling (alternative). Approved
27.09.2013
13/03171/COND1 Application for approval of details reserved by | Approved
Conditions 2 - Materials, 3 - Construction 14.03.2014
Method Statement, 4 - Landscaping, 5 - Tree
Protection, 6 - Arb Report and Condition 7 -
Spoil disposal statement of approved
application — 13/01949/FUL - Replacement
dwelling.
13/02986/NONMAT | Non Material amendment to planning Refused
permission 13/01949/FUL - Replacement 06.01.2014
dwelling - (Amendment) 2 no. additional
dormers and adjustments to roof over bay
projection.
14/00590/FUL Replacement dwelling. Approved
27.05.2014
14/02479/FUL Section 73: Variation of Condition 2 - Approved
Materials of planning permission reference 21.11.2014
14/00590/FUL (Replacement dwelling). To
allow use of Portland stone instead of lime
render.
14/03407/FUL Removal or variation of Condition 2 - Approved
Materials as specified in approved reference | 18.02.2015
14/00590/FUL (Replacement dwelling).
15/00673/FUL Relocate Existing Drive. Approved
08.06.2015
15/01729/FUL Section 73a - Variation of Condition 2 - Approved
Materials of approved reference 01.09.2015
14/00590/FUL - Replacement dwelling.
15/01980/COND1 Details reserved by Conditions 4: Tree Approved
protection, 5: Arboricultural Method 19.08.2015
statement, 6: Landscaping, of planning
permission 15/00673/FUL: Relocate existing
drive.
15/03435/HOUSE Landscape scheme for new dwelling. Approved
18.03.2016
16/00193/COND1 Details reserved by Conditions (4) - Tree Approved
protection scheme and (5) -Arboricultural 20.4.2016
Method Statement of approved planning
permission 14/00590/FUL.
West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 10t August 2022

Page 28




16/02789/FUL Change of use from incidental to ancillary Refused
residential, together with inclusion within the 10.01.2017
curtilage (if required).

18/01441/HOUSE Demolition of garden store. External Approved
alterations to the Eastern Pavilion including 05.07.2019
the provision of rooflights (Retrospective).
Erection of new Western Pavilion to provide
home office facilities at ground level, guest
accommodation at first floor and a basement
level garage.

19/02835/COND1 Application for approval of details reserved by | Approved
condition 13 - Construction Method Statement | 14.02.2020
of approved application 18/01441/HOUSE.

19/03032/COND2 Application for approval of details reserved by | Approved

Condition 8 - External lighting and 9 - 12.02.2020
Removal of soil of approved application
18/01441/HOUSE.
20/01694/HOUSE Alterations to external elevations of Eastern Refused
Pavilion 22.10.2020
Appeal
dismissed
09.07.2021
20/02027/HOUSE Retention of existing access for a temporary Refused
period of 2 years. 10.11.2020
Appeal
dismissed
09.07.2021
21/01347/FUL Retention of track (retrospective) and Refused
extension of track and construction of access. | 14.01.2022
21/02793/FUL Installation of two ponds and retrospective Awaiting
permission for the retention of an existing determination
pond.
22/001191/FULMAJ | Extension of residential curtilage. Awaiting

determination

2.2 Application 20/01694/HOUSE (dismissed at appeal) proposed similar alterations to the
Eastern Pavilion that is proposed as part of this application. Therefore, the appeal
decision for application 20/01694/HOUSE is a material consideration of significant
weight in the determination of this application. A copy of that appeal decision is provided
in Appendix 1 at the end of this report.

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 10t August 2022

Page 29



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1

Procedural Matters

The proposed development falls within the column 1 description at Schedule 2,
paragraph 10(b) (urban development projects) of the Town and Country Planning
(Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017.  Although it does not
meet/exceed the relevant threshold in column 2, it is located in a sensitive area, namely
the North Wessex Downs Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. The proposal is
therefore “Schedule 2 development” within the meaning of the Regulations. However,
taking into account the selection criteria in Schedule 3 of the EIA Regulations, it is not
considered that the proposal is likely to have significant effects on the environment.
Accordingly, the proposal is not considered “EIA development” within the meaning of
the Regulations.

The application was advertised by means of a site notice displayed on 5th August 2021
on the site; the deadline for representations expired on 26th August 2021.

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is alevy charged on most new development to pay
for new infrastructure required as a result of the new development. CIL will be charged
on residential (C3 and C4) and retail (Al - A5) development at a rate per square metre
(based on Gross Internal Area) on new development of more than 100 square metres
of net floorspace (including extensions) or when a new dwelling is created (even if it is
less than 100 square metres).

Initial assessment based on the CIL PAAIR form, it appears that the development will
be liable for a CIL payment. However, CIL liability will be formally confirmed by the CIL
Charging Authority under separate cover following the grant of any permission. More
information is available at www.westberks.gov.uk/cil

Consultation

Statutory and non-statutory consultation

The table below summarises the consultation responses received during the
consideration of the application. The full responses may be viewed with the application
documents on the Council’'s website, using the link at the start of this report.

West Woodhay 15t Response:
Parish Council:
Object: 1. Given the size of the development, West Woodhay
Parish Meeting do not considered this a ‘minor material
amendment’.

2. We would like to draw the Council’s attention to Appeal Ref:
APP/WO340/W/20/3265904, referring to application ref:
20/01694/House dated 23 July 2020 whereby the development
proposed was refused permission for retrospective alterations to
the external elevations of the Eastern Pavilion. The Inspector
Christopher Miell dismissed the appeal application stating: “I
have been unable to conclude that the proposal would preserve
the sense of remoteness, tranquillity and dark night skies of the
North Wessex Downs AONB. This is a matter of overriding
concern and | therefore conclude that the appeal should be
dismissed.” How can the council consider a similar application
that has already been refused by the council and dismissed at
appeal by the Inspector in Bristol? Given that the plans state that

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 10t August 2022

Page 30



the Western Pavilion will mirror the existing Eastern Pavilion, this
will further brighten up the dark skies. Therefore this application
should be refused.

3. West Woodhay Parish Meeting would like to know if AONB
have been consulted on the planning application given that the
size of the original car park (Ref: 18/01441/HOUSE) was reduced
following a meeting between the agent and Rebecca Davies of
AONB. In an email from Steven Sensecal to Matthew Shepherd
dated 14th May 2019, Mr Sensecal wrote “We have also reduced
the size of the basement and replaced the ramp to the basement
parking with a car lift. These changes have reduced the footprint
and built form of the building, which, as we agreed at the April
site meeting, will in turn reduce its impact on the AONB”. Given
that this new development is 3x the footprint of the previously
approved underground car park and 4.6x the footprint of the main
residence; we object to this application for the same reasons.

4. Given the size and depth of the proposed underground
development at Lake House, water pumps will be used to pump
water away. As the nearest residents and the village of West
Woodhay is topographically upstream to Lake House, they are
very worried that their ground water will be drained away over
time which could have an ecological impact on all upstream
areas. The council should also bear in mind that the majority of
the properties within West Woodhay are on their own water
supply, many with private bore holes. We note that the applicant
has submitted a hydrological report for water drainage
downstream of the development and we request that the
applicant provides a hydrological report for the properties and
land upstream to confirm that this development will have no
impact on any water upstream, including fields, gardens, trees,
ponds, bogs, bore holes and house foundations.

5. West Woodhay Parish Meeting would also like to know what
the true depth is of the proposed underground development? If
the application fails to detail measurements and illustrate the
swimming pool with no depth or no height between the surface
water level and the ceiling! Please see the drawings supplied by
Adam Architectural, floor plans dated 12/07/2021.

2" Response (letter from Allen Planning Ltd. on behalf of
West Woodhay Parish Council, full copy available on
planning file):

Object as to whether an application under section 73 is
admissible in terms of the significant change in development
proposed from that approved by the LPA under
reference18/01441/HOUSE to that sought through this
application. Object on the basis of the impact of the development
on the character of the area and the wider AONB, including “Dark
Skies”. Proposal would have an adverse impact on the AONB,
including potential “light pollution” which is a material
consideration for development within the AONB, and the
application is thereby contrary to the advice in the Framework
and the development plan. Proposal should be supported by an
ecology report. Details of proposed full depth of subterranean

West Berkshire Council

Western Area Planning Committee 10t August 2022

Page 31



development. Application fails to detail measurements and
illustrate the swimming pool with no depth or height indicated
between the surface water level and the ceiling. Such matters are
of course material, potentially, to issues of surface water/flooding
and also ecology.

3'¥ Response (following submission of lighting assessment
and drainage strategy):

Object: Lighting assessment is inadequate, omitting details of all
lighting at the property, the previous application for the glass
windows and doors (to replace the wooden doors of the garage)
were refused by the council and dismissed at appeal; both the
proposed lighting and existing lighting is unacceptable in a
remote area of AONB as advised by the Inspector; the amended
Hydrogeological Report dated 03/11/2021does not mention any
effect that the drainage might have upstream and at no point has
a visit any of the neighbouring land or properties been made to
make their assessment; request WBC to undertake their own
independent Hydrogeological Report.

4" Response (following consultation response from the
Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA)):

The impact on local water supply has not been adequately
assessed by the applicant and that a report assessing such
should be submitted for consideration to the Council prior to the
determination of this application. Ideally this assessment should
be carried out by an independent specialistand one not
appointed by the applicant himself.

5t Response (additional comments on hydrogeological
report and response from LLFA):

The hydrogeological report does not relate or refer to any impact
upstream or outside the site. The LLFA Officer originally queried
this, as have we, but he admits his views are based purely on
opinion not facts and he states it would be difficult to prove the
impact on groundwater levels one way or the other. Surely the
Council should be insisting on proof that there are no detrimental
issues to outside properties and interests before considering
approval. The LLFA Officer also states Cole Easdon should have
specifically addressed this issue in more detail, which they
haven't done. As regards the 3rd paragraph, West Woodhay
Parish Meeting don’t have any evidence of adverse effects
through accelerated drainage of groundwater yet, but we are
asking a reasonable question, and looking for assurance which is
not unreasonable. We believe the onus should be on the
Applicant to provide an answer. On the 7th paragraph, the
consultant feels that additional measures should be introduced to
slow the flow of groundwater in dry weather which sounds very
sensible and West Woodhay Parish Meeting would support that.

East Woodhay
Parish Council:

Object:

e In line with the launch of the consultation process for our
Neighbourhood Plan, we have realised the need to work

West Berkshire Council

Western Area Planning Committee 10t August 2022

Page 32



even more closely with our neighbouring Parish Councils, as
we are all being put under increasing pressure by
developers and landowners with little thought to the impact
of their proposals on the infrastructure (water table, roads,
drainage, schools, doctors etc), and on this Area of
Outstanding Natural Beauty, as well as on the environment
more generally.

e This proposal represents exactly one of those type of
proposals (especially when viewed in conjunction with
application number 21/01347/FUL — retention of track
(retrospective) and extension of track and construction of
access —to which we also object.)

e The detalils of this proposal have been much discussed in
other letters of objection which we support — notably that
from Allen Planning dated 18™" August 2021 and submitted
on behalf of West Woodhay Parish Meeting.

In essence, we believe that this application should be refused for
amongst other reasons:

e There is no demonstration that such a major excavation
would be in the public interest nor that there is a need for
such an undertaking.

e There seems to have been no consideration to the impact on
the immediate environment of such a project which will be
detrimental — not least because of its proximity to a major
gas pipeline.

e The dark skies are much valued within this AONB and any
further fenestration to the property is unacceptable (and
some, we note has already been declined on Appeal.)

o Similarly — whilst not specifically discussed — the proposal
would most likely require further external lighting (as may
application 21/ 01347/FUL) and this would be unacceptable
in an area where we are trying to protect the dark skies.

e What seems to be a project which could have devastating
impact on neighbouring properties, has not assessed what
this impact may be in terms of the effect on the water table
etc.

e The proposal would appear to be a gross over-development
of the site (scale and mass) whichis not in keeping with the
area, the AONB, and represents a further ‘urbanisation’ of
the countryside which is not acceptable.

Inkpen Parish Object:
Council:
e overdevelopment of the site in scale and mass;
¢ the proposal is not sympathetic to the AONB;
the development is beyond reasonable domestic
requirement.
Hamstead Object:
Marshall Parish
Council: e development has progressed in tactical stages to exploit

planning policy;
e looking at the current proposal in the context of the
trajectory of this development process, and the blatant

West Berkshire Council

Western Area Planning Committee 10t August 2022

Page 33



breaches of planning consent, it is abundantly clear that
this is not merely enhancing a family home, but a
determinedly commercial enterprise such as a health spa
or hotel;

e no need or justification for this type of house or current
application in open countryside;

e overdevelopment of site contrary to planning policy;

e contrary to NPPF as it does not conserve and enhance
the natural environment;

e light pollution;

e development would detract from the natural beauty of the
AONB;

e contrary to Core Strategy, North Wessex Downs AONB
Management Plan, Policies C2, C3 and C6 of the Housing
Site Allocations DPD and the NPPF;

e burden of lorry traffic on narrow lanes damaging highways
and affecting highway safety to local traffic, horses and
cyclists both during the construction process and if and
when it might become a commercial enterprise.

Kintbury Parish | Object:
Council:

e overdevelopment of the site within the AONB,;

o traffic flow through Kintbury during construction and after
completion given the scale of the development;

¢ the proposals will have an effect on the "dark skies" which
are an integral part of the AONB;

e Kintbury Parish Council has been made aware of the
objections raised by West Woodhay Parish and other
adjacent parishes and fully supports their objections.

Lead Local 15t Response:
Flood Authority
(LLFA): The approved applications consist of a new main house and

pavilion situated within the surface water flow path, as defined in
the Environment Agency’s risk of flooding from surface water
mapping, with an underground basement parking area with a
depth of 6.35m intruding into ground where high groundwater
occurs. Approval for the associated drainage proposals was
given on the basis that measures were necessaryto protect the
proposed property from surface water flood. Intercepted water as
well as the run-off from new impermeable areas (roof and
driveways etc.) was proposed to be piped to a storage pond, with
onward discharge into an existing watercourse at a controlled
rate of 4 I/s.

Whilst it was reasonable to allow run-off from new impermeable
areas to discharge off site in this way to provide flood protection
for the buildings during heavy rainfall events, the measures so far
constructed, or which still have planning approval, include
significant lengths of land drains. The land drain system also
potentially allows up to 4 I/s of groundwater to flow continuously
from the site throughout the year, even when no rainfall occurs.
With hindsight, this is an un-intended consequence of the
permission for off-site discharge that allows draining of additional
water away from the site in an accelerated and ‘un-natural’ way

West Berkshire Council

Western Area Planning Committee 10t August 2022

Page 34



thus causing an increase in the cumulative volume of water
downstream (however relatively small that volume may be); it
allows rapid removal of water from the site which should ideally
remain underground as a resource.

It is difficult to gauge with any certainty the effect the reduction in
groundwater level will have had on the site already — the Cole
Easdon Drainage Strategy states that [perched] groundwater is
likely to be in cells at depths of between 0.5m and 3m below
ground level - so it is assumed that the buildings will have been
designed to allow for ground shrinkage due to the presence of
clay and the drying out of the upper ground layer once
groundwater is removed. Even more difficult to assess is the
effect the reduction in groundwater will have on the wider area
outside of the site since the groundwater is considered to be
perched in this area and is at quite shallow depths. There is a
potential for the effects of the removal of groundwater to reach
much further ‘upstream’ of the site. This point has been raised by
an objector to the Application and the Applicant's comments are
required in respect of this.

The new proposal will be far more detrimental in the effect it will
have through the greater level of groundwater removal from the
site that will be taking place, whichis a cause for concernto us.

In order not to exacerbate the situation further due to the
proposed tripling in size of the new basement, the drainage
solution for the current proposal should aim to eliminate any
further loss of groundwater from the site overall and instead
include measures to allow as much as possible back into the
ground on the ‘downstream’ side of the buildings. Ideally a
separate flow control should be included on the land drain system
to reduce any off-site flow from this source. Since there may well
be irrigation required for landscaped areas within the property,
storage of water for this purpose could be proposed rather than
draw off mains or borehole-supplied water, giving one small way
of reducing the negative impact.

During construction, extensive de-watering operations will be
required that will be far greater scale than for the earlier phases
of the development. Notwithstanding the issue of the volume of
water that will be pumped out, inevitably this water will have a
high degree of suspended silt which will need to be removed prior
to onward discharge of cleaned water. No proposal has been
offered for this so far but | envisage this will require silt-buster
type devices or similar which will allow silt to settle out before
cleaned water is allowed from the units. This must be subject to a
specific condition requiring proposals to deal with the silt,
including details of the length of time anticipated for the ‘cleaning’
process to complete to ensure that temporary storage of polluted
water is provided at sufficient capacity.

The current proposals also provide for drainage of the ground
above the basement once constructed with that water also being
disposed of. There should not be any need for this drainage if the
structure’s waterproofing is adequate and instead the area could

West Berkshire Council

Western Area Planning Committee 10t August 2022

Page 35



be planted with suitable plants to deal with the resulting site
conditions.

The excavations for the new basement will produce a substantial
volume of spoil which requires disposal. Any proposals for
temporary stockpiling or permanent spreading out on site are
required for review so that consideration can be given to the
effect this may have on the movement of water over the site, or of
polluted run-off if stockpiling is used.

The final point is that the Drainage Strategy plan 6683/501 E
does not include the existing watercourse where the site outfall
point occurs and the drawing should be extended to cover this
area.

2"d Response following submission of amended
Hydrogeological Report:

A concern set out in my previous response of 23rd Sept 2021
was the potential effect that the large basement area would have
on groundwater in the area, although it was stated that this effect
was difficult to gauge with any certainty. The updated CE Report
now presents a revised strategy whereby the entire basement
structure will be surrounded by free draining material that is un-
connected to any other part of the drainage system (section 4.4).
So, whilst groundwater entering the free draining material on the
‘upstream’ side of the building potentially can travel through that
material to the ‘downstream’ side of the building much more
rapidly than natural conditions would allow, it would rely on
permeability through the surrounding soils to escape any further
downstream and for that reason | am therefore satisfied that it's
unlikely to lead to further unduly rapid draining of groundwater
upstream of the basement development after all.

As raised by West Woodhay Parish Meeting, the updated CE
Report does not specifically mention any effect that the overall
drainage system might have upstream in the wider locality, i.e.
outside of the site boundary. This was one of the points raised in
my earlier response and which the Parish picked up on. My
comment concerning what effect any reduction in groundwater
will have outside of the site was based solely on opinion and it
should be emphasised that it would be extremely difficult to prove
one way or the other that groundwater is likely to be adversely
affected over the wider local area compared to the immediate
environs of the basement under the latest proposal, for the
reason already discussed. It may have been beneficial if Cole
Easdon had perhaps specifically addressed this particular issue
in more detail.

Equally it would be interesting to know if the Parish have any real
evidence of adverse effects from possible accelerated drainage
of groundwater through what has already been implemented at
the site, since with the amended proposals not contributing
anywhere near as much to the problem as was initially
envisaged, it is the already completed works that will now likely
have the biggest influence. If there is hard evidence of an existing

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 10t August 2022

Page 36



detriment, that could then be passed back to the Applicant’s team
for further analysis and comment.

In the CE Report at section 4.8, it is discussed about water
drained into the pond potentially being re-used on site for
watering the garden for instance. This option is considered to be
very feasible and should be carried through into future detailed
design. This same water could even be usedto feed the natural
swimming pool perhaps? Water re-use would be something |
would like to have added to any approval conditions.

The statement in section 4.5 concerning the basement slab being
covered by an 800mm deep soft landscaping layer allowing sub-
soil flows to “continue in an easterly direction” is also a positive
improvement on the previous drainage strategy.

Sections 4.6 and 4.11 deal with construction issues. Prevention
of silt pollution will be a particular problem during the dewatering
activities as the excavation is so vast. We are currently looking at
problems with dewatering activities causing pollution on another
site, so would flag up that there will need to be multiple silt
busters employed in parallel to cope with the volume of water
needed to be pumped out and time required for silt to drop out of
the water. Ideally the suggested swale should be close to the
construction area to allow water back into the ground as close to
‘source’ as possible; the swale itself will probably need to be of a
substantial size. For that reason an estimate of required siltbuster
capacity and temporary swale volume must be provided within
the construction method statement, with consideration given to
supplementary anti-pollution measures if necessary. Again this
should be subjectto condition.

As touched on above (and in more detail on 23rd September), it
is the already constructed land drains and downstream drainage
system which possibly now present the biggest detriment to
water management on site. Repeating last year's comments, this
is something that was approved previously without realising the
“un-intended consequence”, or side-effect, on groundwater.
Although the Applicant would be under no obligation to do so
under the planning process, | would still request that some
additional measure(s) is or are introduced to slow the flow of
groundwater from the site when the weather is otherwise dry, as
opposed to removal of rainfall run-off for which the measures
were originally intended (and approved for).

The final point previously was regarding the extent of site the
Drainage Strategy Drawing covered. There is a slight
improvement on the previous version but | still don’t consider it
extends as far as it should and perhaps the drawing size should
be increased from A3 to A2 to accommodate everything.

3'Y response following submission of amended Drainage
Strategy Plan:

No response received.

West Berkshire Council

Western Area Planning Committee 10t August 2022

Page 37



Environmental

No objections.

Health:

Health and No objections.

Safety

Execultive:

WBC Highways: | No comments regarding application.

Natural England:

No comments regarding application.

Tree Officer:

No objections subject to a condition regarding landscaping.

National Grid:

No objections subject to a condition to prevent development until
an Independent Engineering Assessmentto confirm the
proposed development and method of construction will have no
impact on the gas pipeline, has been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the
National Grid.

North Wessex

No response received.

Downs AONB:

WBC Ecology: No response received.
British Gas No response received.
(TRANSCO):

Public representations

4.2 Representations have been received from 12 contributors, all of which object to the

proposal.

4.3 The full responses may be viewed with the application documents on the Council's
website, using the link at the start of this report. In summary, the following issues/points

have been raised:

e Increase in traffic, particularly HGVs on narrow lanes;
¢ Impact on highway safety and damage to private property as a result;

Proposal already refused by West Woodhay Parish Council, West Berkshire

Council and the Planning Inspector due to light pollution;

Increase in light pollution;

Impact on dark skies of the AONB,;

Impact on geology of the area;

Impact on the existing landscape and scenic beauty of the AONB;

Impact on nearby major gas pipeline requiring comments from National Grid,;
Impact on hydrology of the area, including upstream and lack of assessment;
An independent hydrology assessment must be undertaken;

North Wessex Downs AONB previously had issues with the basement which had

to be reduced in size to overcome their concerns;

Suburbanisation of green field area through development such as this;
No information regarding intended final use of the site;

Potential commercial use of the property;

Impact on water drainage, aquifers and wildlife;

West Berkshire Council

Western Area Planning Committee 10t August 2022

Page 38



5.1

5.2

6.1

No need or justification for the development proposed;

Lack of involvement of the community by applicant;

Impact of construction on local community;

Overdevelopment;

Impact on ecology;

Impact on rural setting;

Impact on view from Wayfarer's Walk;

Impact on sub-surface water tables and underground water migration;
Disposal of spoil on site impacting on landscape and drainage of area;
It is presented as a variation, whereas in reality it is a major new application;
Lack of information regarding true depth of basement proposed,
Disposal of spoail;

Impact of pile driving close to major gas pipeline.

Planning Policy

Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined in
accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. The following policies of the statutory development plan are relevant to the
consideration of this application.

Policies ADPP1, ADPP5, CS5, CS13, CS14, CS16, CS17 and CS19 of the West
Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026 (WBCS).

Policies C1, C3, C6 and P1 of the Housing Site Allocations Development Plan
Document 2006-2026 (HSA DPD).

Policies TRANS.1, OVS.5 and OVS.6 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan
1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

The following material considerations are relevant to the consideration of this
application:

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)

North Wessex Downs AONB Management Plan 2014-19
WBC House Extensions SPG (2004)

WBC Quiality Design SPD (2006)

Appraisal

The main issues for consideration in this application are:

Principle of development;

Character and Appearance and AONB;

Dark Night Skies of the North Wessex Downs AONB;
Drainage;

Highway Safety;

Impact on Utilities near the site;

Ecology and Landscaping;

Neighbouring Amenity;

Other Matters;

Conditions.

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 10t August 2022

Page 39



6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

Principle of development

The principle of the development was established under the previously approved
application, 18/01441/HOUSE which considered that, as the proposed Western Pavilion
would have a ridge height that is the same as the Eastern Pavilion’s ridge height and
that both of these would be subservient in height to the replacement dwelling on site,
together with a basement and car lift that would not be visible in the AONB, the proposal
was in accordance with Policy C6 of the HSA DPD.

The proposed variations to the approved scheme in this application do not alter the
heights of either of the pavilions from that previously approved and the proposed
amendments to the basement would equally not be visible in the AONB.

As such, the principle of the proposed alterations is considered acceptable subject to
consideration of the impact on the character and appearance of the area, AONB,
drainage and highways amongst other matters.

Representations received and comments from the Parish Council raise concern that the
proposed amendments do not represent minor material amendments to the
development previously approved, and therefore cannot be considered under an
application submitted under section 73 or 73A of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 (as amended).

The description of the development approved under permission 18/01441/HOUSE
stated ‘Demolition of garden store. External alterations to the Eastern Pavilion including
the provision of rooflights (Retrospective). Erection of new Western Pavilion to provide
home office facilities at ground level, guest accommodation at first floor and a basement
level garage.” The development seeking permission under this application is not
considered to deviate materially from the description of development proposed under
the original application and is therefore able to be considered to fall within the remit of a
S73/73A application.

Character and Appearance and AONB

The Inspector in the previous appeal for the changes in fenestration to the Eastem
Pavilion opined the following:

11. The proposed alterations would materially change the external appearance of the
East Pavilion. Consequently, the East Pavilion would no longer mirror the external
appearance of the West Pavilion outbuilding, which is currently under construction.
Despite this, the bulk, scale and massing of the buildings and the overall architectural
style of the two buildings would remain comparable, and, thus the buildings would
maintain a cohesive and balanced appearance.

12. Moreover, the traditional style and proportionality of the proposed fenestration
would be of a high quality and the East Pavilion would appear well related to the main
dwelling.

13. The Council have expressed concern that the proposed elevational changes would
result in a building that no longer reads as an ancillary outbuilding, subservientto the
main dwellinghouse.

14. | wholly disagree with the Council’'s position. The bulk, scale and massing of the
outbuilding would remain unaltered and when viewed from the front of the house, it
would be visually apparent that the East Pavilion was an ancillary outbuilding to Lake
House, which is a substantial dwellinghouse which has a dominant relationship with
the East Pavilion.

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 10t August 2022

Page 40



6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

15. For these reasons, | conclude that the proposal would have an acceptable effect
upon the character and appearance of the area. In addition, | find that the proposed
changes to the design and appearance of the East Pavilion building would have a
neutral impact upon and thus would conserve the natural beauty of the North Wessex
Downs AONB.’

The amendments proposed in this application would change the appearance of the
Western Pavilion such that it would mirror the changes also proposed to the Eastern
Pavilion. The changes in the Eastern Pavilion from that previously considered by the
Inspector, as set out in paragraph 1.3 of this report, are minor and immaterial to the
overall appearance. Neither of the two Pavilions would be increased in height, bulk
massing or scale as a result of this application beyond that considered by the Inspector.

The previous appeal decision is a material consideration of significant weight. Taking
into account the Inspector’s conclusions on the impact on the character and appearance
of the area and AONB, the proposed amendments to both the Eastern and Western
Pavilions would have an acceptable effect upon the character and appearance of the
area and the changes to the design and appearance would have a neutral impact upon,
and thus would conserve the natural beauty of, the North Wessex Downs AONB.

In respect of the proposed basement, no part of the basement would be visible above
ground. The proposed car lift from the driveway/forecourt of the Western Pavilion to the
basement would be located in approximately the same location as that previously
approved and would be finished in the same material as that used on the
driveway/forecourt. Therefore, there would be no visual impact on the AONB as a result
of the proposed changes to the approved basement scheme, including its enlargement.

For the reasons given above, the amendments proposed would accord with Policies
CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) Development Plan
Document (the ‘CS’) and Policy C3 of the West Berkshire District Council Housing Site
Allocations Development Plan Document (the ‘DPD’), in so far as they collectively
require new development, including the design of housing in the countryside, to be of a
high quality design that respects the character and appearance of the area and
landscape character of the District.

Dark Night Skies of the North Wessex Downs AONB

The Inspector in the previous appeal for the proposed changes in fenestration to the
Eastern Pavilion opined the following:

“19. The appellant argues that the proposed changes are of a ‘minor nature’ and when
viewed in the context of the whole site, which includes the Lake House, they contend
that the proposal would not give rise to any adverse impacts in respect of the strong
sense of remoteness, tranquillity and dark night skies of the North Wessex Downs
AONB. | disagree with this position.

20. Whilst the proposal would not increase the extent of built form at the appeal site, it
would nevertheless result in a significant increase in the extent of glazing on the
existing building. In particular, the proposal would see a large number of timber doors
and several unadopted window openings, all of which would prevent most light spillage
from the building due to their opaque properties, replaced with glazed windows and
doors, which would result in light spillage to occur from the use of internal lighting
during night hours.

21. To this regard, | note that no technical information has been put forward by the
appellant to demonstrate that the impact of light spill from the existing building would

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 10t August 2022

Page 41



6.13

6.14

6.15

6.16

6.17

be comparable to that if the proposed changes were to occur. Moreover, no
substantive evidence has been provided to demonstrate how any light spillage could
be mitigated against.

22. Given the above, | am unable to conclude that the development would preserve
the sense of remoteness, tranquillity and dark night skies of the North Wessex Downs
AONB. As such, I cannot conclude that the proposal would accord with Area Delivery
Plan Policy 5 of the CS.’

The application under consideration here alters little in terms of the fenestration
proposed for the Eastern Pavilion from that considered by the Inspector previously at
appeal. However, this application also proposes changes to the fenestration in the
Western Pavilion as well which would undoubtedly increase the potential for light
pollution. The Inspector in the previous appeal decision advised that their conclusions
were based upon a lack of technical information being provided by the appellant to
demonstrate that the impact of light spill from the existing building would be comparable
to that if the proposed changes were to occur. Moreover, the Inspector concluded that
no substantive evidence has been provided to demonstrate how any light spillage could
be mitigated against.

For this application a Lighting Assessment has been provided by the applicant. The
conclusions of that Lighting Assessment considers the baseline for application site
immediately surrounding the main dwelling and pavilions prior to the proposed changes
to be located within Environmental Zone E2, as defined in the Guidance Notes for the
Reduction of Obtrusive Light (GN01/2021), (CIE150:2017), largely as a result of the
artificial light spillage from the already approved and constructed dwelling. The
remainder of the property at Lake House and the wider area is considered to fall within
Environmental Zone E1.

As a result of the changes proposed in this application, the Lighting Assessment
submitted concludes that light spillage from the fenestration proposed would be limited
to areas immediately surrounding each of the pavilions, falling away to below 0.5lux
within a short distance from the pavilions, as shownin figure 12 of the submitted Lighting
Assessment. Once the proposed changes to both pavilions have been implemented,
the Lighting Assessment concludes that there would be negligible change to the current
baseline situation as a result of the proposed changes. The Lighting Assessment
advises that it was undertaken on the basis of a worst case scenario where no window
coverings were considered in the calculations for light levels. Window coverings, which
are likely to be used, would therefore reduce light levels further.

Technical information regarding lighting that was absent for consideration by the
Inspector in the previous appeal has now been submitted for this current application.
That technical information demonstrates a negligible increase in light pollution from the
current baseline. Therefore, the changes in fenestration proposed to both pavilions are
not considered to detrimentally impact on the dark skies of the AONB.

Drainage

The application and subsequent amendments have been reviewed by the Lead Local
Flood Authority (LLFA). Concernwas raised regarding the potential effect of an increase
in the size of basement would have on groundwater in the area. However, the LLFA
officer acknowledges in his response that this matter is difficult to gauge with any
certainty. The updated Hydrogeological Report provided by the applicant presented a
revised strategy whereby the entire basement structure is to be surrounded by free
draining material that is un-connected to any other part of the drainage system.
Therefore, whilst groundwater entering the free draining material on the ‘upstream’ side
of the building can potentially travel through that material to the ‘downstream’side of the

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 10t August 2022

Page 42



6.18

6.19

6.20

6.21

6.22

6.23

6.24

6.25

6.26

building much more rapidly than natural conditions would allow, it would rely on
permeability through the surrounding soils to escape any further downstream. As a
result, the LLFA concluded that the development proposed is unlikely to lead to further
unduly rapid draining of groundwater upstream of the basement development.

The LLFA note the concerns of the Parish Council regarding the impact of the proposal
upstream in the wider locality (as also raised in many of the representations received).
The LLFA advised that any previous comment they made on what effect any reduction
in groundwater will have outside of the site was based solely on opinion and it should
be emphasised that it would be extremely difficult to prove one way or the other that
groundwater is likely to be adversely affected over the wider local area compared to the
immediate environs of the basement under the latest proposal.

In the absence of any evidence to support the concern regarding the potential impact
on groundwater outside of the application site, and, given that the LLFA acknowledge
that it would be extremely difficult to prove one way or the other that groundwater is
likely to be adversely affected over the wider local area compared to the immediate
environs of the basement under the latest proposal, a reason for refusal, due to the
potential for such impact, would not be able to be reasonably and sufficiently
substantiated at appeal and therefore does not adequately justify resisting the current
proposal on this ground

Therefore, subject to conditions securing appropriate drainage, including surface water
drainage, and re-use of water within the site where possible, the development proposed
is not considered to run contrary to Development Plan Policy CS16 of the Core Strategy.

Highway Safety

The Local Highway Authority officer has reviewed the application and raises no
objections. A number of representations received raise concern regarding the impact
of traffic, in particular HGVs, and highway safety as a result of the proposed
development. Whilst the proposed changes to the appearance of the pavilions is not
considered to introduce any significant traffic or impact on highway safety, the increase
in the size of the proposed basement has the potential to result in an increase in the
associated number of HGV movements during excavation works, due to the increased
volume of spoil that will need to be moved.

A spoil condition was attached to the previous permission granted (18/01441/HOUSE)
and it is considered that whilst there may be some additional movements of HGVs as a
result of the increased volume of spoil, that can be adequately controlled by condition,
as was the case for the previous permission.

Therefore the proposal is considered to be acceptable and in accordance with CS13 of
the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026), Saved Local Plan policy TRANS.1 and
the NPPF subject to conditions.

Impact on Utilities near the site

As identified in the previous permission, a main gas pipeline is located close to the site
and the proposed development.

As was the case for the previous application, National Grid have been consulted and
have requested a condition requiring the submission of an independent engineering
report and construction method statement for the development in regards to the pipeline.

Consultation with the Health and Safety Executive has also taken place who raise no
objections.

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 10t August 2022

Page 43



6.27

6.28

6.29

6.30

6.31

6.32

6.33

It is clear that the protective easement is being observed as part of the development
and any further permits or discussions during the course of construction need to be
between the contractors and National Grid. The relevant insurance for the contractors
will need to be observed to guarantee the safety of the pipeline; these are all issues
beyond the control of planning legislation.

Ecology and Landscaping

Policy CS 17 of the Core Strategy states that biodiversity and geodiversity assets across
West Berkshire will be conserved and enhanced. The NPPF supports the overall aims
and objectives of this policy. The application site is located within a biodiversity
opportunity area. A preliminary ecology report was submitted for the previous
application that was approved, which made several recommendations including:-

¢ No further protected species surveys were required

e The gutter and eaves of the barn should be netted to prevent house martins or
swallows nesting there this season. If this is not possible and if birds commence
nest building they should be left undisturbed until the young have fledged.

e Enhancements should be incorporated into the design of the development to
benefit biodiversity. This could include installation of a barn owl box on a tree at
the edge of the woodland to provide a new nesting opportunity for the species.

e Should the development not commence within 2 years of this report a resurvey
is recommended due to the potential for the ecological interest of the site to
change.

Subject to the same condition to secure these recommendations as was attached to the
previous permission, the impact on ecology and biodiversity is considered to be
acceptable.

The Tree Officer has raised no objections to the proposed development subject to a
condition requiring landscaping to be implemented in accordance with the previously
approved landscaping scheme.

Subject to conditions, it is considered the development complies with CS17 of the Core
Strategy and provides mitigation and protection to the ecology of the site and will not
have a detrimental impact in accordance with the provisions of Core Strategy CS17 and
advice within the NPPF.

Neighbouring Amenity

In regards to neighbouring amenity, securing a good standard of amenity for all existing
and future occupants of land and buildings is one of the core planning principles of the
NPPF. Policy CS14 of the Core Strategy states that new development must make a
positive contribution to the quality of life in West Berkshire. SPD Quality Design - West
Berkshire outlines considerations to be taken into account with regard to residential
amenity, and Policy OVS.6 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan Saved Policies
considers the potential noise impact.

The impact on neighbouring amenity is considered to be minimal. The nearest
neighbouring dwellings are Fishpond Farm and Hatch House Farm. Both of these
dwellings benefit from a considerable separation distance between themselves and the
proposed development. Fishpond farm dwelling is located approximately 300 metres
from the proposed development. Hatch House Farm is located approximately 430
metres from the proposed development. The development does not raise concern in
regards to overlooking, overbearing, overshadowing or loss of daylight and/or sunlight

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 10t August 2022

Page 44



6.34

6.35

6.36

6.37

6.38

6.39

6.40

to neighbouring amenity given the level of separation between the proposed
development and neighbouring buildings. Any impact on neighbours from construction
noise during works will also be minimal and temporary until development is finished.

As demonstrated in the submitted Lighting Assessment, the proposed changes to the
pavilions will not cause undue impact on the neighbouring amenity as a result of light
pollution, given the distance of separation.

For these reasons, the proposal is in accordance with Development Plan Policy CS14
of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and Policy OVS.6 of the West
Berkshire District Local Plan Saved Policies.

Other Matters

A number of representations received raise concern about the potential future use of
the property for commercial purposes. Should the applicant wish to use the property for
purposes other than as a single residential dwelling, planning permission would be
required and the impact of that proposed development would be considered in the
determination of such an application.

Representations also raise concern over the lack of communication and involvement
between the applicant and the local community. Whilstthe NPPF strongly encourages
applicants to engage with the local community and seek pre-application advice, it also
recognises that the Local Planning Authority cannot require that a developer engages
with themselves or the local community before submitting an application.

Conditions

This application has been submitted seeking to vary the approved plans condition
attached to permission 18/01441/HOUSE (condition 3) in order that amendments to the
previously approved scheme are secured. As Officers consider the proposed changes
to the approved scheme to be acceptable, it is recommended that condition 3 of the
previous permission is amended accordingly to account for the new plans.

As with all applications to vary or remove conditions submitted under section 73 or 73A
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended), the Local Planning Authority
can also vary or remove conditions that were previously attached to the permission, or
add new conditions, to account for new matters that may arise or be introduced by the
amendments proposed, or, to include previous information that may have been
submitted in respect of conditions attached to the previous permission.

Permision18/01441/HOUSE was granted subject to the following conditions:

e Condition 1 — time limit for development to commence before two years from
date of decision;

e Condition 2 — Use of ancillary buildings prevented until the applicant has entered
into a variation of the section 106 agreement of application 93/42531/ADD to
vary the residential curtilage so that it accurately represents what has been
approved under application 14/00590/FUL and 15/03435/HOUSE;

Condition 3 — Approved Plans;

e Condition 4 — Materials;

e Condition 5 — Restriction on use of outbuildings for domestic ancillary use to the
main dwelling;

e Condition 6 — No development to commence until existing garden store and
garage building have been demolished;

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 10t August 2022

Page 45



6.41

6.42

6.43

6.44

6.45

6.46

6.47

6.48

6.49

6.50

e Condition 7 — No occupation of the pavilions until landscaping has been
implemented in accordance with the approved plan;

e Condition 8 — No development to take place until details of external lighting have
been submitted and approved,

e Condition 9 — Details of how spoil will be dealt with including where it may be
deposited on site and timescales for depositing or removal;

e Condition 10 — Securing ecological mitigation measures set out in the preliminary
ecological appraisal,

e Condition 11 — Land drainage and surface water drainage to be implemented in
accordance with the approved drainage strategies;

e Condition 12 — No demolition or construction works to take place outside of
specified hours;

e Condition 13 - No development to commence until an Independent Engineering
Assessmentto confirm the proposed development and method of construction
will have no impact on the gas pipeline, has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the National Grid.

In respect of condition 1 this is proposed to be removed as the development has
commenced due to the changes in fenestration having already been implemented for
the Eastern Pavilion and works to construct the basement have commenced.

In respect of condition 2, this remains necessary and is proposed to be applied in the
same format with the references to an outbuilding varied to refer to ‘outbuildings
(pavilions) and basement’ for greater clarity.

In respect of condition 3, this is proposed to be varied to account for the new plans.
In respect of condition 4, this is proposed to remain unchanged.

In respect of condition 5, it remains necessary to restrict the use of the pavilions and
basement to ancillary residential use. Therefore, it is proposed to be applied in the same
format with the references to an ‘outbuilding’ varied to refer to ‘outbuildings (pavilions)
and basement’ for greater precision and clarity.

In respect of conditions 6, this is proposed to remain unchanged.

In respect of condition 7, a minor change to the wording is proposed to provide greater
clarity and precision to the condition.

In respect of condition 8, whilst details of external lighting were previously submitted
under application 19/03032/COND2, those proposed external lights have not formed
part of the Lighting Impact Assessment submitted for this application. As such this
condition is proposed to be varied to prevent any external lighting from being erected at
the site, other than those previously permitted for the main dwelling only under the
respective planning permission, until details of external lighting and any necessary
assessments have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

In respect of condition 9, again details were previously submitted and approved under
application 19/03032/COND2. However, the proposed scheme in this application
significantly increases the amount of spoil that will be generated due to the increase in
size of the basement proposed. Therefore, this condition is proposed to be varied to
require no further development to take place until the details of spoil removal have been
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

In respect of condition 10, this is proposed to remain unchanged.

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 10t August 2022

Page 46



6.51

6.52

6.53

6.54

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

In respect of condition 11, as a result of the proposed changes to the basement, it is
considered that further information regarding the detail of the sustainable drainage
solutions to be employed are required, as advised by the LLFA. As such, it is proposed
that this condition is varied to require further details to be submitted to and approved by
the Local Planning Authority.

In respect of condition 12, this is proposed to remain unchanged.

In respect of condition 13, whilst details were previously submitted in respect of this
condition, due to the changes in the proposed basement location and size it is
considered necessary to vary this condition to require further details to be submitted to
and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

There are not considered to be any justifiable reasons or need for any new additional
conditions over and above those previously applied by the Western Area Planning
Committee in their determination of the previous application, 18/01441/HOUSE.

Planning Balance and Conclusion

The NPPF states there is a presumption in favour of sustainable development, which
paragraph 8 advises should be applied in assessing and determining development
proposals. The NPPF identifies three dimensions to sustainable development:
economic, social and environmental.

The proposal is considered to have limited economic considerations beyond the
immediate construction period. The environmental considerations have been assessed
in terms of design, amenity and impact on the area. Social considerations overlap those
of the environmental in terms of amenity. Having assessed the application in terms of
design, impact on the area and impact on neighbouring amenity the development is
considered to be represent sustainable development.

It is acknowledged that objections have been received from the public and Parish
Council as well as other Parish Councils nearby. However, it is considered that the
objections have been satisfactorily addressed throughout this report when taking into
account the comments provided by the Inspector in the decision for the previously
refused application, 20/01694/HOUSE.

The proposed changes to the fenestration of the pavilions and size and position of the
basement are not considered to detrimentally impact on the character and appearance
of the area and AONB, and, as demonstrated through the technical information
submitted, not considered to give rise to any additional light pollution on the dark skies
of the AONB upon that which has previously been granted permission. The proposed
amendments are also not considered to result in a detrimental impact on ground or
surface water, ecology and biodiversity, highway safety or neighbouring amenity.

Therefore, the development is in accordance with the National Planning Policy
Framework (2019) and policies ADPP1, ADPP5, CS13, CS14, CS16, CS17, and CS19
of the WestBerkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026), and C3 and C6 of the WestBerkshire
HSADPD. In addition to these the proposal is in line with Supplementary Planning
Guidance Quality Design (June 2006) and House Extensions (July 2004).

The purpose of this item for decision is not to determine the planning application, but to
determine the Council’'s position at the appeal. For the reasons detailed above, it is
recommended that the appeal is supported, subject to conditions.

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 10t August 2022

Page 47



7.7 Irrespective of its position on the planning merits, the Council will provide a list of
suggested conditions on a ‘without prejudice’ basis. Council Officers will negotiate with
the Appellant on the wording on the suggested conditions.

8. Full Recommendation

8.1 To delegate to the Service Director — Development and Regulation to make
representations at appeal that planning permission should be granted subject to
conditions set out below together with the authority to negotiate or amend those
conditions during the course of the appeal.

Conditions

1. | Variation of legal agreement

The use of the ancillary outbuildings (pavilions) and basement hereby permitted shall
not commence until the applicant has entered into a variation of the section 106 legal
agreement of application 93/42531/ADD to vary the residential curtilage so that it
accurately represents what has been approved under application 14/00590/FUL and
15/03435/HOUSE.

Reason: It is recommended that the legal agreements be updated to reflect the red
line asit is, to avoid further confusion. A refusal reason on this matter would likely be
indefensible at appeal as the LPA has already accepted and approved the red line
under applications 14/00590/FUL and 15/03435/HOUSE. The recommendation of
the variation of the 106 agreement regularises this issue.

2. | Approved plans

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved drawings:

- Drawing title "Site Location Plan ". Drawing number 6038/PLO1 Rev. B received on
received 14th May 2019.

- Drawing title "Block Plan as Proposed". Drawing number 6038/PL04 Rev A received
on 12th July 2021.

- Drawing title “East Pavilion Floor Plans & Elevations As Proposed”. Drawing number
6038/PLO7 Rev A received on 12th July 2021.

- Drawing title “West Pavilion Floor Plans & Elevations As Proposed”. Drawing number
6038/PLO6 Rev A received on 12th July 2021.

- Drawing title “West Pavilion & East Pavilion Basement Floor Plans As Proposed”.
Drawing number 6038/PL0O5 Rev A received on 12th July 2021.

- Drawing title “Site Section A-A Comparison”. Drawing number 6038/PL12 Rev A
received on 12th July 2021.

- Drawing title “Site Section B-B Comparison”. Drawing number 6038/PL13 Rev A
received on 12th July 2021.

- Drawing title "Proposed Drainage Strategy Plan". Drawing number 668/501 Rev G
received on 16th February 2022.

- Document title "Hydrogeological Report and Surface Water Drainage Strategy”
dated October 2021 [issue 9] received on 3rd November 2021.

- Document title “Lighting Impact Assessment” (reference: DOC-16-17011-5A-
20220214-SMK-LH-LIA- 04) dated February 2022 and received on 17th February
2022.

- Drawing title “Landscape and Planting Plan”. Drawing number uh-283-100 received
on 14th May 2019.

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 10t August 2022

Page 48



Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interest of proper planning.

3. Materials

The materials to be used in the development hereby permitted shall be as specified
on the plans and the application forms.

Reason: To ensure that the external materials are visually attractive and respond to
local character. This condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning
Policy Framework, Policies ADPP1, ADPP5, CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire
Core Strategy (2006-2026), Supplementary Planning Document Quality Design (June
2006), Supplementary Planning Guidance House Extensions (July 2004).

4, Use of Pavilions and Basement

The outbuildings (pavilions) and basement hereby approved shall not be used at any
time other than for purposes as domestic ancillary use to the residential use of the
dwelling known as Lake House (formerly Hayward Green Farm). No part of the
development shall be used as a separate dwelling unit and no separate curtilage shall
be created.

Reason: To limit the future use of the building to prevent uses which would not be
ancillary or incidental to the main dwelling. This condition is applied in the interests of
preventing a change of use which would result in an unsustainable pattern of
development, and detract from neighbouring and local amenity. This condition is
applied in accordance with Policies ADPP1, ADPP5, CS1, CS13, CS14, CS19 of the
WestBerkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026, Policies C1, C3 and C6 of the Housing Site
Allocations DPD 2006-2026, WBC Quality Design SPD (2006), and WBC House
Extensions SPG (2004).

5. Removal of existing garden store and garage

No development shall commence until the Garden Store and Garage building has
been fully demolished and all waste removed from site.

Reason: The demolition of the two buildings is used to justify the approved
development.  Without demolition of these buildings the development would
proliferate built form on the AONB not in accordance with policy, This condition is
imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Policies
CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026), Supplementary
Planning Document Quality Design (June 2006) and House Extensions (July 2004).

6. | Landscaping

Prior to occupation of the pavilion the landscaping scheme shall be implemented in
full in accordance with Drawing titled "Landscape and Planting Plan", drawing number
uh-283-100 received on 14th May 2019.

Any trees, shrubs or plants that die or become seriously damaged within five years of
the completion of this development/of the completion of the approved landscaping
scheme shall be replaced in the next planting season by plants of the same size and
species.

Reason This condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy
Framework (2019), Policies CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy
(2006-2026), Supplementary Planning Document Quality Design (June 2006) and

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 10t August 2022

Page 49



House Extensions (July 2004).

7. External Lighting

No external lighting shall be installed within the application site until a lighting strategy
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
strategy shall include a plan to show the location of any lighting, isolux contour
diagram(s), an operation strategy (e.g. details of timed operation), and specifications
all lighting to ensure that lighting levels are not increased upon that which has been
established within the Lighting Impact Assessment submitted and received on 17th
February 2022.

No additional external lighting shall be installed within the application site upon that
which has already been granted permission except in accordance with the above
strategy.

Reason: To conserve the dark night skies of the North Wessex Downs AONB. This
condition is applied in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, the
North Wessex Downs AONB Management Plan 2019-24, and Policies CS17 and
CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.

8. | Spoil Removal

No further development shall take place until details of how all spoil arising from the
development will be used and/or disposed have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. These details shall:

@ Show where any spoil to remain on the site will be deposited,;

(b) Show the resultant ground levels for spoil deposited on the site (compared to
existing ground levels);

(c) Include measures to remove all spoil from the site (that is not to be deposited);
(d) Include timescales for the depositing/removal of spoil.

All spoil arising from the development shall be used and/or disposed of in accordance
with the approved detalils.

Reason: To ensure appropriate disposal of spoil from the development and to ensure
that ground levels are not raised in order to protect the character and amenity of the
area and AONB. This condition is applied in accordance with the National Planning
Policy Framework, and Policies CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy
2006-2026.

9. Ecology mitigation

The mitigation measures described in the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal created by
Ecologybydesign shall be implemented in full before the proposed development is
commenced and the measures shall thereafter be retained. This measures are as
follows:

- The gutter and eaves of the barn should be netted to prevent house martins or
swallows nesting there this season. If this is not possible and if birds commence nest
building they should be left undisturbed until the young have fledged.

- The installation of a barn owl box on a tree at the edge of the woodland to provide a
new nesting opportunity for the species.

- Should the development not commence within 2 years of this report a resurvey is
recommended due to the potential for the ecological interest of the site to change.

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 10t August 2022

Page 50



Reason: To ensure the protection of species, which are subject to statutory protection
under European Legislation. This condition is imposed in accordance with the
National Planning Policy Framework (2019) and Policy CS17 of the West Berkshire
Core Strategy (2006-2026).

10.

Drainage

No further development shall take place until details of sustainable drainage
measures to manage surface water and ground water within the site have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

These details shall:

a) Incorporate the implementation of Sustainable Drainage methods (SuDS) in
accordance with the Non-Statutory Technical Standards for SuDS (March 2015), the
SuDS Manual C753 (2015) and West Berkshire Council local standards, particularly
the WBC SuDS Supplementary Planning Document December 2018;

b) Include and be informed by the ground investigation survey submitted on 3
November 2021 titled ‘Hydrogeological Report and Surface Water Drainage Strategy’
dated October 2021 [issue 9];

c) Include constructiondrawings, cross-sections and specifications of all proposed
SuDS measures within the site;

d) Include run-off calculations, discharge rates, infiltration and storage capacity
calculations for the proposed SuDS measures based on a 1 in 100 year storm +40%
for climate change and a suitable outfall location;

e) Include pre-treatment methods to prevent any pollution or silt entering SuDS
features or causing any contamination to the soil or groundwater including an estimate
of required siltbuster capacity and temporary swale volume;

f) Include details of how water will be retained and re-used within the site for
activities such as watering gardens or swimming pool;

0) Include details of how the SuDS measures will be maintained and managed
after completion. These details shall be provided as part of a handover pack for
subsequent purchasers and owners of the property/premises;

The above sustainable drainage measures shall be implemented in accordance with
the approved details before the before the basement hereby permitted is first
occupied. The sustainable drainage measures shall be maintained and managed in
accordance with the approved details thereafter.

Reason: To ensure that surface water will be managed in a sustainable manner; to
prevent the increased risk of flooding; to improve and protect water quality, habitat
and amenity and ensure future maintenance of the surface water drainage system
can be, and is carried out in an appropriate and efficient manner. This condition is
applied in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, Policy CS16 of
the WestBerkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026), and Part 4 of Supplementary Planning
Document Quality Design (June 2006).

11.

Hours of demolition and construction

No further demolition or construction works shall take place outside the following
hours:

7:30am to 6:00pm Mondays to Fridays;

8:30am to 1:00pm Saturdays;

nor at any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of adjoining land uses and occupiers. This
condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 10t August 2022

Page 51



(2019), Policy CS14 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and Policies
CS14 and CS19.

12.

Pipeline

No further development shall commence unti an Independent Engineering
Assessment to confirm the proposed development and method of construction will
have no impact on the gas pipeline, has been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the National Grid. Thereafter the
approved Assessment shall be implemented and adhered to throughout the entire
construction period.

Reason: To ensure the safety of the National Grids utilities Pipeline which runs
through the site is not compromised by works. The condition is placed in relation to
materials considered in regards to the health and safety of the areas and its
occupants. This condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy
Framework (2019), Policies CS5, CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core
Strategy (2006-2026)

Informatives

This decision has been made in a positive way to foster the delivery of sustainable
development having regard to Development Plan policies and available guidance to
secure high quality appropriate development. In this application whilst there has been
a need to balance conflicting considerations, the local planning authority has worked
proactively with the applicant to secure and accept what is considered to be a
development which improves the economic, social and environmental conditions of
the area.

The development hereby approved results in a requirement to make payments to the
Council as part of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) procedure. A Liability
Notice setting out further details, and including the amount of CIL payable will be sent
out separately from this Decision Notice. You are advised to read the Liability Notice
and ensure that a Commencement Notice is submitted to the authority prior to the
commencement of the development. Failure to submit the Commencement Notice
will result in the loss of any exemptions claimed, and the loss of any right to pay by
instalments, and additional costs to you in the form of surcharges. For further details
see the website at www.westberks.gov.uk/cll

The attention of the applicant is drawn to the Berkshire Act, 1986, Part Il, Clause 9,
which enables the Highway Authority to recover the costs of repairing damage to the
footway, cycleway or grass verge, arising during building operations.

The attention of the applicant is drawn to the Highways Act 1980, which enables the
Highway Authority to recover expenses due to extraordinary traffic.

The applicant is encourage to engage with the North Wessex Downs AONB board
and other relevant stakeholders to produce a estate management plan for the
extensive landownership associated with the development to ensure conservation of
the AONB landscape into the future.

With regard to surface water drainage, Thames Water would advise that if the
developer follows the sequential approach to the disposal of surface water we would
have no objection. Wherethe developer proposes to discharge to a public sewer, prior

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 10t August 2022

Page 52


http://www.westberks.gov.uk/cil

approval from Thames Water Developer Services will be required. Should you require
further information please refer to our website.
https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Apply-and-pay-
forservices/Wastewater-services

7. | On the basis of information provided, Thames Water would advise that with regard to
water network and water treatment infrastructure capacity, we would not have any
objection to the above planning application. Thames Water recommends the following
informative be attached to this planning permission. Thames Water will aim to provide
customers with a minimum pressure of 10m head (approx 1 bar) and a flow rate of 9
litres/minute at the point where it leaves Thames Waters pipes. The developer should
take account of this minimum pressure in the design of the proposed development.

8. | Thames Water requests that the Applicant should incorporate within their proposal,
protection to the property by installing a positive pumped device (or equivalent
reflecting technological advances) to avoid the risk of backflow at a later date, on the
assumption that the sewerage network may surcharge to ground level during storm
conditions. Fitting only a non-return valve could result in flooding to the property
should there be prolonged surcharge in the public sewer. If as part of the basement
development there is a proposal to discharge ground water to the public network, this
would require a Groundwater Risk Management Permit from Thames Water. Any
discharge made without a permit is deemed illegal and may result in prosecution
under the provisions of the Water Industry Act 1991. We would expect the developer
to demonstrate what measures he will undertake to minimise groundwater discharges
into the public sewer. Permit enquiries should be directed to Thames Water's Risk
Management Team by telephoning 02035779483 or by emaliling
wwqgriskmanagement@thameswater.co.uk. Application forms should be completed
on line via www.thameswater.co.uk/wastewaterquality

9. National Grid Informative:

PLEASE READ CAREFULLY

— No buildings should encroach within the Easement strip of the pipeline;

— No demolition shall be allowed within 150 metres of a pipeline without an
assessment of the vibration levels at the pipeline. Expert advice may need to
be sought which can be arranged through National Grid.

— National Grid has a Deed of Easement for each pipeline which prevents
change to existing ground levels, storage of materials. It also prevents the
erection of permanent / temporary buildings, or structures. If necessary
National grid will take action to legally enforce the terms of the easement.

— We would draw your attention to the Planning (Hazardous Substances)
Regulations 1992, the Land Use Planning rules and PADHI (Planning Advise
for Developments near Hazardous Installations) guidance published by the
HSE, which may affect this development. To view the PADHI Document,
please use the link below: http://www.hse.gov.uk/landuseplanning/padhi.pdf

— You should be aware of the Health and Safety Executives guidance document
HS(G) 47 "Avoiding Danger from Underground Services", and National Grid's
specification for Safe Working in the Vicinity of National Grid High Pressure
gas pipelines and associated installations - requirements for third parties
T/SPISSW22.

— You should already have received alink to download a copy of T/SP/SSW/22,
from our Plant protection Team, which is also available to download from our
website. To view the SSW22 Document, please use the link below:
http://www2.nationalgrid.com/W orkArea/DownloadAsset.as px?id=33968

— A National Grid representative will be monitoring the works to comply with
SSW22. To download a copy of the HSE Guidance HS(G)47, please use the
following link: http://www.hse.gov.uk/pubns/books/hsg47.htm

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 10t August 2022

Page 53



Pipeline Crossings

Cables Crossing

All work should be carried out in accordance with British Standards policy

National Grid will also need to ensure that our pipelines access is maintained
during and after construction.

Our pipelines are normally buried to a depth cover of 1.1 metres however;
actual depth and position must be confirmed on site by trial hole investigation
under the supervision of a National Grid representative. Ground cover above
our pipelines should not be reduced or increased.

If any excavations are planned within 3 metres of National Grid High Pressure
Pipeline or, within 10 metres of an AGI (Above Ground Installation), or if any
embankment or dredging works are proposed then the actual position and
depth of the pipeline must be established on site in the presence of a National
Grid representative. A safe working method must be agreed prior to any work
taking place in order to minimise the risk of damage and ensure the final depth
of cover does not affect the integrity of the pipeline.

Excavation works may take place unsupervised no closer than 3 metres from
the pipeline once the actual depth and position has been has been confirmed
on site under the supervision of a National Grid representative. Similarly,
excavation with hand held power tools is not permitted within 1.5 metres from
our apparatus and the work is undertaken with NG supervision and guidance.

Where existing roads cannot be used, construction traffic should ONLY cross
the pipeline at locations agreed with a National Grid engineer.

All crossing points will be fenced on both sides with a post and wire fence and
with the fence returned along the easement for a distance of 6 metres.

The pipeline shall be protected, at the crossing points, by temporary rafts
constructed at ground level. No protective measures including the installation
of concrete slab protection shall be installed over or near to the National Grid
pipeline without the prior permission of National Grid. National Grid will need
to agree the material, the dimensions and method of installation of the
proposed protective measure. The method of installation shall be confirmed
through the submission of a formal written method statement from the
contractor to National Grid.

Please be aware that written permission from National Grid is required before
any works commence within the National Grid easement strip.

A National Grid representative shall monitor any works within close proximity
to the pipeline to comply with National Grid specification T/SP/SSW22.

A Deed of Indemnity is required for any crossing of the easement including
cables.

Cables may cross the pipeline at perpendicular angle to the pipeline i.e. 90
degrees.

A National Grid representative shall supervise any cable crossing of a pipeline.
An impact protection slab should be laid between the cable and pipeline if the
cable crossing is above the pipeline.

Where a new service is to cross over the pipeline a clearance distance of 0.6
metres between the crown of the pipeline and underside of the service should
be maintained. If this cannot be achieved the service must cross below the
pipeline with a clearance distance of 0.6 metres.

BS EN 13509:2003 - Cathodic protection measurement techniques

BS EN 12954:2001 - Cathodic protection of buried or immersed metallic
structures - General principles and application for pipelines

BS 7361 Part 1 - Cathodic Protection Code of Practice for land and marine
applications

National Grid Management Procedures.

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 10t August 2022

Page 54



Appendix 1 — Appeal Decision and relevant plan for application 20/01694/HOUSE

| 4% The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decision

Site visit made on 11 June 2021

by Christopher Miell MPlan MRTPI
an Inspactor appointed by the Secretary of State
Decision date: July 2021

Appeal Ref: APP/WO0340/W/20/3265904

Hayward Green Farm, Watery Lane, West Woodhay, Newbury RG20 0B]

* The appeal iz made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.
The appeal iz made by Mr Charles Brown against the decision of West Berkshire Council.
The application Ref 20/01694/HOUSE, dated 23 July 2020, was refused by notice dated
22 October 2020.

. The development proposed is alterations to the external elevations of eastemn pavilion.

Decision
1. The appeal is dismissed.
Procedural Matters

2. 1 have been appointad to determine two appeals on this site. The other appeal
reference is APP/WO0340/W/20/3265892. I have considered each proposal on its
individual merits and prepared separate decisions.

3. The appellant submitted an additional block plan®* to the Council part way
through the planning application process. For the avoidance of doubt, I have
had regard to this plan in the determination of this appeal.

4, 0On my site visit I observed that the existing garage doors at the front of the
outbuilding had been removed and the openings had been partially blocked up
with masonry to match the existing building. s such, I am determining this
appeal on a part-retrospective basis.

Application for costs

5. An application for costs was made by Mr Charles Brown against West Berkshire
Council. This application is the subject of a separate decision.

Main Issues

6. The main issues are: (i) the effect of the development upon the character and
appearance of the area, including whether the proposal conserves or enhances
the landscape and scenic beauty of the North Wessex Downs Area of
Qutstanding Matural Beauty; and (ii) whether or not the development would
preserve the sense of remoteness, tranquillity and dark night skies of the North
Wessex Downs Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty.

! Dwig Mo: LHOO1 10:0035

https:/fwww.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 10t August 2022

Page 55



Appeal Decision APP/WO240/W/20/3265904

Reasons

Character and appearance

7.

10.

11.

13.

14,

15.

The appeal site is occupied by a substantial detached dwelling, known as Lake
House, which is set amongst spacious landscaped grounds and surrounded by
fizlds and woodland. The site is located within the open countryside and the
MNorth Wessex Downs Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (the "AONB"). To the
front of the dwelling there is a central courtyard and an existing ocutbuilding
which is known as the "East Pavilion”,

The Council explain that planning permission? was granted in May 2018 for the
erection of a further outbuilding to the front of the dwelling, which will be
known as the "West Pavilion®. At the time of my site visit, I observad that
construction works had commenced in respect of the West Pavilion.

Once completed the respective East Pavilion and West Pavilion cutbuildings
would flank the principal elevation of the Lake House and be sited either side of
the central courtyard to form a grand entrance to the front of the main
dwelling. The approved plans for the West Pavilion show that it would have a
symmetrical layout and mirror the design and appearance of the East Pavilion
with five pairs of full-height timber doors along the front elevation.

It is proposad to undertake alterations to the external elevations of the East
Pavilion, which would see the existing timber doors and unadopted openings
replaced with window openings and French-style patio doors.

The proposed alterations would materially change the external appearance of
the East Pavilion. Conseqguently, the East Pavilion would no longer mirror the
external appearance of the West Pavilion outbuilding, which is currently under
construction. Despite this, the bulk, scale and massing of the buildings and the
overall architectural style of the two buildings would remain comparable, and,
thus the buildings would maintain a cohesive and balanced appearance.

. Moreover, the traditional style and proportionality of the proposed fenastration

would be of a high quality and the East Pavilion would appear well related to
the main dwelling.

The Council have expressed concern that the proposed elevational changes
would result in a building that no longer reads as an ancillary cutbuilding,
subservient to the main dwellinghouse.,

I wholly disagree with the Council’s position. The bulk, scale and massing of
the outbuilding would remain unaltered and when viewed from the front of the
house, it would be visually apparent that the East Pavilion was an ancillary
outbuilding to Lake House, which is a substantial dwellinghouse which has a
dominant relationship with the East Pavilion.

For these reasons, I conclude that the proposal would have an acceptable
effect upon the character and appearance of the area. In addition, I find that
the proposed changes to the design and appearance of the East Pavilicn
building would have a2 neutral impact upon and thus would conserve the natural
beauty of the North Wessax Downs AONE.

 Council Ref: 18/01441/HOUSE

hitps:/fvaviw.gov.ul/planning-inspectorate: 2

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 10t August 2022

Page 56



Appeal Decision APP/WO340/W,/20/3265904

16. Therefore, the proposal would accord with Policies C514 and €519 of the West

17.

Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) Development Plan Document (the "'CS")
and Policy C3 of the West Berkshire District Council Housing Site Allocations
Development Plan Document (the "DPD), in so far as they collectively require
new development, including the design of housing in the countryside, to be of 2
high quality design that respects the character and appearance of the area and
landscape character of the District,

In respect of this main issue, the Council’s statement of case refers to Policy C&
of the DPD. However, this policy relates to the extension of existing dwellings
within the Countryside. Conseguently, I consider that the policy is not
applicable in respect of the appeal proposal, which relates to alterations to an
existing outbuilding.

Remoteness, tranquillity and dark night skies of the North Wessex Downs AONB

18.

19.

20.

21.

23.

Area Delivery Plan Policy 5 of the CS sets out the Council’s Spatial Strategy in
respect of the North Wessex Downs AONB. In respect of the environmental
strategy, it states, amongst other things, "Recognising the area as a national
landscape designation, development will conserve and enhance the local
distinctiveness, sense of place and setting of the AONB whilst preserving the
strong sense of remotenass, tranguillity and dark night skies, particularly on the
open downland. Development will respond positively to the local context, and
respect identified landscape features and compenents of natural beauty”.

The appellant argues that the proposed changes are of 2 ‘'minor nature” and
when viewead in the context of the whole site, which includes the Lake House,
they contend that the proposal would not give rise to any adverse impacts in
respect of the strong sense of remoteness, tranquillity and dark night skies of
the Morth Wessex Downs A0NB. I disagrese with this position,

Whilst the proposal would not increase the extent of built form at the appeal
site, it would nevertheless result in a significant increase in the extent of
glazing on the existing building. In particular, the proposal would see a large
number of timber doors and several unadopted window cpenings, all of which
would prevent most light spillage from the building due to their opague
properties, replaced with glazed windows and doors, which would result in light
spillage to occur from the use of internal lighting during night hours.

Tao this regard, I note that no technical information has been put forward by the
appellant to demonstrate that the impact of light spill from the existing building
would be comparable to that if the proposed changes were to occur. Moreover,
no substantive evidence has been provided to demonstrate how any light
spillage could be mitigated against.

. Given the above, I am unable to conclude that the development would

preserve the sense of remoteneass, tranquillity and dark night skies of the North
Wessex Downs A0NB. As such, I cannot conclude that the proposal would
accord with Area Delivery Plan Policy 5 of the CS.

Accordingly, the proposal would be inconsistent with paragraph 180 of the
Mational Planning Policy Framework which states "planning policies and
decisions should also ensure that new development is appropriate for its
location taking into account the likely effects (including cumulative effects) of
pollution on health, living conditions and the natural environment, as well as

btzps:/wiviw.gow.uk/planning-inspectorate 3

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee

Page 57

10t August 2022



Appeal Decision APP/WO340,/W/20/3265904

the potential sensitivity of the site or the wider area to impacts that could arise
from the development. In doing so they should: (c) limit the impact of light
pollution from artificial light on local amenity, intrinsically dark landscapes and
nature conservation”.

Planning Balance and Conclusion

24, 1 have found that the design and appearance of the proposed changes to the
East Pavilion building would have an acceptable impact upon the character and
appearance of the area and would conserve the natural beauty of the North
Wessex Downs ADMB. Nevertheless, a lack of harm is a matter of neutral
consequence and does not camry weight in favour of the proposal.

25. However, I have been unable to conclude that the proposal would preserve the
sense of remoteness, tranquillity and dark night skies of the North Wessex
Downs AONB. This is a matter of overriding concern and I therefore conclude
that the appeal should be dismissed.

Christopher Miell
INSPECTOR

o — 2
West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 10t August 2022

Page 58



E00:01 VOOHT
e o man
20/ 0/ED LK e 2T 0T g
OZ0C/L0ED - HOLWASTSHINGS HOUWA=T= A0
SUOENST PaSodild - UDIWES 1583 R t
e i o= e ey I [
Pz emep premg e _ _
2ucpme masyeEm T
25 7eme e mpma _
80 0ES _ P _ 1
AEypOOA 153 _ _
e ussug) puesmie — = = i _
_ H - — _ i HF _ |
c o ™ P I !
I [ ol I

(G 3 T
RO Eae

10t August 2022

=eopea peemg me=T

e AEw 062

HOLLWASTE NGRS

Western Area Planning Committee
Page 59

1«

_
|
[i
fi
Ii

|
|IHH
11T
i
|
|
k\
1
|
z

INSS] DNINNY IS

S310N

VAT A TS HL L WSS 434 Y 0
MOLLIELLY HL 0L LN 3 THI0HS SDMEIEANT 10 S0HE AV MY

I W (EEHD 38 TVIHE CHOESRENTD TTY
TS Y SR S L HIEHMLLVHL 0 <L 200 N0
L0 3 251 AU 40 LCTETSHCASE N 200 THHE NS A3 Y

West Berkshire Council



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 60



21/01843/HOUSE

Lake House, West Woodhay Road, West Woodhay RG20 0BU

) J
/' Ball's Copse

1 1
i

' A

1 o 0
T
) g

-

- £ Smart's Copse

b
o
’

Hatch House
/ Plantations |
Hatch’House
Farm

Map Centre Coordinates :

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission Organisation |West Berkshire Council
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2003.

Department

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may

lead to prosecution or civil proceedings . Comments Not Set

Date 07 July 2022
Scale 1:7289
m 93 186 279 372 SLA Number [0100024151

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 62



Plans and drawings relevant to reports
submitted to Western Area Planning Committee

Wednesday 10t August 2022 at 6.30pm

At Council Chamber, Council Offices, Market Street,
Newbury, RG14 5LD

And via Zoom

[to be read in conjunction with the main agenda]

Please note:

o All drawings are copied at A4 and consequently are not scalable

e Most relevant plans have been included — however, in some cases, it
may be necessary for the case officer to make a selection

o All drawings are available to view at www.westberks.qov.uk

¥ WestBerkstire




21/01843/HOUSE
Lake House

West Woodhay Road
West Woodhay

Page 64



Adjacent Properties and Boundaries are shown for illustrative purposes

only and have not been surveyed unless otherwise stated.

Old Drive

Hatch House
Farm

Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2021. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

010 20 30 20 50 60 70 80 90 100 110 120 130 140 150 160 170 180 190 200 210 220 230 240 250 260

Scale 1:2500

Page 65

4556

Ball's Bottom

N LF7

All areas shown are approximate and should be verified before forming
the basis of a decision.

Do not scale other than for Planning Application purposes.

All dimensions must be checked by the contractor before commencing
work on site.

No deviation from this drawing will be permitted without the prior written
consent of the Architect.

The copyright of this drawing remains with the Architect and may not be
reproduced in any form without prior written consent.

Ground Floor Slabs, Foundations, Sub-Structures, etc. All work below
ground level is shown provisionally. Inspection of ground condition is

essential prior to work commencing.

Reassessment is essential when the ground conditions are apparent, and
redesign may be necessary in the light of soil conditions found. The
responsibility for establishing the soil and sub-soil conditions rests with

the contractor.

5245

Trage

D 07/07/21  Issued for planning ™

C 09/06/21
B 08/08/18
A 22/05/18
Rev. Date

PROJECT

TITLE:

Ordnance Survey information updated
Amenment to boundary of residential curtilage
Amendments to boundary lines

Description

Lake House
West Woodhay

Site Location Plan

SCALE: 1:2500 @ A3
DATE: July 2021
DRAWING No: 6038/PLO1 Rev D
DRAWN BY: ]

ADAM

OLD HYDE HOUSE,
WINCHESTER,
TELEPHONE: 01962 843843

HAMPSHIRE,

RP
RP
RP

Initials

ARCHITECTURE

75 HYDE STREET
SO23 7DW
FACSIMILE: 01962 843303

www .adamarchitecture.com contact@adamarchitecture.com

LONDON OFFICE: 6 QUEEN
TELEPHONE: 020 7841 0140

SQUARE, WCIN 3AT
FACSIMILE: 01962 843303

ADAM ARCHITECTURE IS A TRADING NAME OF ROBERT ADAM ARCHITECTS LIMITED



Adjacent Properties and Boundaries are shown for illustrative purposes
- - \ - only and have not been surveyed unless otherwise stated.

All areas shown are approximate and should be verified before forming
the basis of a decision

Do not scale other than for Planning Application purposes.

All dimensions must be checked by the contractor before commencing
work onsite.

No deviation from this drawing will be permitted without the prior written
consent of the Architect.

The copyright of this drawing remains with the Architect and may not be
reproduced in any form without prior written consent.

Ground Floor Slabs, Foundations, Sub-Structures, ete. All work below
ground level is shown provisionally. Inspection of ground condition is
essential prior to work commencing.

Reassessment is essential when the ground conditions are apparent, and
redesign may be necessary in the light of soil conditions found. The
responsibility for establishing the soil and sub-soil con

fons rests with

the contractor.
Approved New Drive -
Ref 15/00673/ FUL

I3 10 20 30 %0 50
Scale 1:500

Note: Drawing based on MicroMap topographical
drawing 'MM/848/2021/01".

Existing Seream

\ Post and wire

L

Post and wirc fence

1.3m high

Page 66

A 0nonan ™
02071 re
Rev. Dae il
PROJECT Lake House

West Woodhay

TITLE: Block Plan as Existing

Landscape Scheme as Approved -

Ref: 15/034 SE
SCALE: 1:500 @ A1
DATE: July 2021

DRAWING No:  6038/PL02 Rev A

DRAWN BY: DY/FJ

ADAM | ARCHITECTURE

OLD HYDE HOUSE, 75 HYDE STREET
WINCHESTER, HAMPSHIRE, SO23 7DW
TELEPHONE: 01962 843843 FACSIMILE: 01962 843303

www.adamarchitecture.com contact(@adamarchitecture.com

LONDON OFFICE: 6 QUEEN SQUARE, WCIN3AT
TELEPHONE: 020 7841 0140 FACSIMILE: 01962 843303

ADAM ARCHITECTURE IS A TRADING NAME OF ROBERT ADAM ARCHITECTS LIVITED.



Adjacent Properties and Boundaries are shown for llusiraive purposes.
AN areas shown are approximate and should be verified before forming

oy and have ot becn surveyed unless otherise statd.

1:100 @ A1

SCALE:

July 2021

DATE:

6038/PLOS Rev A

DRAWING No:

DRAWN BY.

ADAM | ARCHITECTURE

5023 7D W

75 HYDE STREET
TELEPHONE: 01962 843843 FACSIMILE: 01962 $43303

HAMPSHIRE,

01D HYDE HOUSE,

WINCHESTER,

WCIN AT

TACSIMILE: 01962 543303

sQuake,

6 queen

TELLPUONE: 020 7541 0140

LONDON ObFICE:

Page 67

¥ 5 2 3= TrE Fl
Ptz o2z TC - ~
H ¥E Eii H
Py rot: iid i
z -] 53
§ ¢ 2 oiis Er
] H ] £5
2 H R £
P f T3 ofis R
FEE g it 34 = d2
1P 0F sEii ozzz £y 93
[T I RN ¢35 &=
H e s T : E:
I7: Lyl if 13
i: ¢ fEicz $ NN
P 0: iTiiilgi I £= =i
i e ZELZE ]
£3: ZEiEGiciid i1
R EERESI0 L5
2 Bizegicor: =
EEERERESE ORI R H . &
8 2 232 25357 3 £z & £ i
Ezs2353 mmmmmme S 9 =
TiziziEriaiiiis - i E B
/
/
/
/
/
/
/
/7
/
O w / /
/
zz /
I /
»n H ;
- 7/
A=
m A 7
/
;
/
/
/
7
/
/
7
S S £ Py
P P S S S S S 9 S $
S > S T ST S S 5 S
P s> T S T ST s S ST s S g T s
\a%% RS & & & T & &S > RS $ S S &
S o e =
! S
sS =
s S
g fsS
z S
& o
g |
] (S
& =
32 s
£g ’ ,%4/
[ A E— A (| Ny | S
i / s
1y J ,%4/
: S
i 5 742%
< / H =
i N =
H 3
e .
= 2t S
H £ =
H B
] =
/ i 3 5
t 5 S
/ .mu 5 S
z S
/ ° Z S
- ZN
/ & s
o S e s e —— I A (W W (N (N W W (W
S s s T S S S s S T TS S S S S S S S S S S S
T s T T s s T S ST S T s s s T T S s e T
$ ,a,%,, <> %%, S %%,, %,%a T %%% %..,% S %%, %% %%% ,,%M%, %,,%%,, ST T TS = s = %,,Wa T
O e -
i S
i ST
/ ! o ana
S e s Y
/ i i b anz i 2 3
- =z
’ ” %%2“ - N%@ Z
! £ 2 f i Zo
/ ! = i3 N N c =
/ i Z H g g s = Z
; 57 [ -z g @ 57
/ ! B - i 7 g Yy =2
B | w i [ — I BB gl |11 | ! N Z & w ~
IomZ= -z b =Co z2=
- iz \Z Z -
! = > = i 8 /%%“ =  =zz o>
i =Z P2 Z o o < «Z
| &= ! & ~  z:Z e
i ez Z& o
! i oz 2 - =
, -z - v =
L ! = Z
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ 7 Z
-z - =
= S
. ZA Z
57 s
s H Za
e D /] 2
s > Za
¢ a%§§§§§§%
e _ _— -  _—-
7 44%% S 4%%% S SZS © %% S S 4—%




Planting

FORECOURT
Tarmac
(Existing)

OFFICE OFFICE

TENNIS COURT

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

TITTT
IEEN

T
|

IN|ERNE O

TTTT

WEST
ELEVATION

SOUTH
ELEVATION

VoI voIb m VoI

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

S

Slate roof

ROOF PLAN

5

ELEVATION

EAST NORTH
ELEVATION

Adjacent Properties and Boundaries are shown for illustrative purposes

ind have not been surveyed unless otherwise stated.

All areas shown are approximate and should be verified before forming
he basis of a decision

Do not

All

work onsite.

No de

le other than for Planning Application purposes.

mensions must be checked by the contractor before commencing

i from this drawing will be permitted without the prior written
consent of the A

ect.

‘The copyright of this drawing remains with the Architect and may not be

reproduced in any form without prior written consent

Ground Floor Slabs, Foundati Sub-Structures, ete. All work below

ground level is shown provisionally. Inspection of ground condition is

essential prior to work commencing.

Reassessment is essential when the ground condi

s are apparent, and
fons found. The
ity for establishing the soil and sub-soil conditions rests with

redesign may be necessary in the light of soil con

responsil
the contractor.

L S B S B S B S B 1
Scale 1100
A ononn ™
+ oo ™
Rev. Date Descrpion
PROJECT Lake House
West Woodhay
TITLE: East Pavilion Floor Plans
& Elevations As Proposed
SCALE: 1:100 @ A1
DATE: July 2021

DRAWING No:  6038/PLO7 Rev A

DRAWN BY: ™

ADAM | ARCHITECTURE

OLD HYDE HOUSE, 75 HYDE STREET
WINCHESTER, HAMPSHIRE, SO23 7DW
TELEPHONE: 01962 843843 FACSIMILE: 01962 843303

www.adamarchitecture.com  contact@adamarchitecture.com

LONDON OFFICE: 6 QUEEN WCIN 3AT
TELEPHONE: 020 7841 0140 FA 01962 843303

ADAM ARCHITECTURE IS A TRADING NAME OF ROBERT ADAM ARCHITECTS LIMITED

Page 68



nt Properties and Boundaries are show ustrative purposes

F Red line indicates planning ap

| i
= und. The
; =i ns rests with
. ] BATH
- STAIR (@)

s
proposed garage

caped area abore

-
c c
LANDING

-—

G S FIRST FLOOR PLAN

|

| il _— |

| | — |

| — |

| |

' 0 T |

STAIR

| OFFICE OFFICE |

| I

| |

! LOBBY !

| |

| |
|
|
I 9
|
| ©
|
, )

FORECOURT CAR LIFT (@)
o match Forecourt surface %

Planting

* 30031

ROOF PLAN Rev. Dute

PROJECT Lake House

West Woodhay

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

TITLE:

SCALE: 1:100 @ A1
|

DATE: July 2021

DRAWING No:  6038/PL06 Rev A

7

DRAWN BY: ™

I-

TTLT

TITTLT

T

ST
T

, ADAM | ARCHITECTURE

EAST SOUTH WEST NORTH WINCHESTER, | HANPSHIRE | 5025 70w
ELEVATION ELEVATION ELEVATION ELEVATION TELEPHONE: 01962 843843 FAC 843303

www.adamarchitecture.com  contact@adar

hitecture.com

LONDON OFFICE: 6 QUEEN SQUARE, WCIN 3AT
TELEPHONE: 020 7841 0140 FACSIMILE: 01962 843303

ADAM ARCHITECTURE IS A TRADING NAME OF ROBERT ADAM ARCHITECTS LIMITED




Adjacent Properties and Boundaries are shown for illustrative purposes

only and have not been surveyed unless othe ated.

All areas shown are approximate and should be verified before forming
the basis of a decision

Do not scale other than for Planning Application purposes.

All dimensions must be checked by the contractor before commencing
work onsite.

No deviation from this drawing will be permitted without the prior written
consent of the Architect.

The copyright of this drawing remains with the Architect and may not be

reproduced in any form without prior written consent.

EASTERN PAVILION

Ground Floor Slabs, Foundations, Sub-Structures, ete. All work below
ground level is shown provisionally. Inspection of ground condition is

Encs Height

ek essential prior to work commencing.

L~ Reassessment is essential when the ground conditions are apparent, and
redesign may be necessary in the light of soil conditions found. The
responsibility for establishing the soil and sub-soil con

' ? the contractor.
| |
F—— : :
| | ISR LE])
| |
1 | Scale 1:200
B
Eaves Height
135.95
LASIN PAVILION Ridge Heighe % Proposed Ridge Height  WISTIRN pAVILION
134356 134356
v - A
Eaves Height Proposed Eaves Height
64 13116+
k. v
Ground Level -
128,35 ey
|
Eastern Pavlion Bascment Garage and Tunnel Flack Level
: LT
12416 roos
Daum
o
e .
A 07.0721  lsucd for planning ™
* 020721 lsued for information ™
; i . Rev. Date Description nitals
Approved Site Section A-A 1:200 " " :
PROJECT Lake House
West Woodhay
il Hoigh . )
et TITLE: Site Section A-A
-z Comparison
FASTERN PAVIION g Heigh WESTERN PAVIION . .
' SCALE: 1:200 @ A1
o - T N -
— DATE: July 2021
e
L - 20

DRAWING No:  6038/PL12 Rev A

Ground exel
350

- — Ground Lvel

12500

\\\\\\\ DRAWN BY: DY/ RP

GARAGE

| rm— rm—
HALL LonnY HALL Lonoy q

I I i
% | ADAM | ARCHITECTURE

OLD HYDE HOUSE, 75 HYDE STREET
WINCHESTER, HAMPSHIRE, SO23 7DW
TELEPHONE: 01962 843843 FACSIMILE: 01962 843303

www.adamarchitecture.com contact(@adamarchitecture.com

Proposed Site Section A-A 1:200

LONDON OFFICE: 6 QUEEN SQUARE, WCIN3AT
TELEPHONE: 020 7841 0140 FACSIMILE: 01962 843303

ADAM ARCHITECTURE IS A TRADING NAME OF ROBERT ADAM ARCHITECTS LIVITED.

Page 70



Ground Level
127.50
R —. ~ 4

RidgeHeight
0
-Z_

Eaves Height -

EASTPAVINON

MAIN 1H0USE

Ground Level
oo

Ground Level
127.50
-_— =z

Ground Level
127.50

Existing Site Section B-B 1:200

RidgeHeight |

= EAST PAVILION
MAIN HOUSE
Ground Level

1
I
I
I
I
I
oo
Z 1

Approved Site Section B-B 1:200

Ridge Height
139.620

-=Z_

Faos Height
135.950
i v g

WESTPAVILION

— =7

¥ Gws gy

Proposed Site Section C-C 1:200

Adjacent Properties and Boundaries are shown for illustrative purposes
only and have not been surveyed unless otherwise stated.

All areas shown are approximate and should be verified before forming
the basis of a decision

Do not scale other than for Planning Application purposes.

All dimensions must be checked by the contractor before commencing
work onsite.

No deviation from this drawing will be permitted without the prior written
consent of the Architect.

The copyright of this drawing remains with the Architect and may not be
reproduced in any form without prior written consent.

Ground Floor Slabs, Foundations, Sub-Structures, ete. All work below
ground level is shown provisionally. Inspection of ground condition is
essential prior to work commencing.

Reassessment is essential when the ground conditions are apparent, and
redesign may be necessary in the light of soil conditions found. The
responsibility for establishing the soil and sub-soil conditions rests with
the contractor.

O 23t 7 S o0 I Ic1y 51920
Scale 1200
A 070701 lssued for planning ™
* 280621 Alterations to layout ™
Rev. Daee Description Iniials
PROJECT Lake House
West Woodhay
TITLE: Site Scction B-B
Comparison
SCALE: 1:200 @ A1
DATE: July 2021

DRAWING No:  6038/PL13 Rev A

DRAWN BY: DY/ RP

ADAM | ARCHITECTURE

OLD HYDE HOUSE, 75 HYDE STREET
WINCHESTER, HAMPSHIRE, SO23 7DW
TELEPHONE: 01962 843843 FACSIMILE: 01962 843303

www.adamarchitecture.com d hitecture.com

LONDON OFFICE: 6 QUEEN SQUARE, WCIN3AT
TELEPHONE: 020 7841 0140 FACSIMILE: 01962 843303

ADAM ARCHITECTURE IS A TRADING NAME OF ROBERT ADAM ARCHITECTS LIVITED.

Page 71



o0 PO

7"

[Existing 450mm
iperforated pipe
culverted ditch line

migrating
laround
[basement

o
‘pel
"oeouhs

3006

N

\ [Existing 2 x 6 inch
\perforated pipes intercepting
loverland runoff

\\
-
i

[Existing 450mm
perforated pipe

QIBss
W14

a oust 08 8 S and
i T 00Ul i oy
aing PG wove St e SO
e 0NN rer o \ v
free o%%_a water® 0 st o ©
- glow IO st B ent O argnd
Gaserme™ e D50 S5 ern
) o b0
elind: %%2%,” E el e

3000

Existing surface water drain
isting ACO

= Xisting Land Drain

® Proposed hydrobrake flow
control
)
j\
\ N
b [Outfall to
=z 00 sting ditch
/ line restricted to
ST mf 41/s using a
land gm%_w Hydrobrake flow
lcontrol _chamber [N
=SV
@ G | NP ]02.02.22 |Changed to A2 sheet
[Existing ditch
red
ﬁw.ﬁﬂf@ o ] no:a F [ LS [04.10.21 w:MoMma water drainage
A Existing pond update:
base %aw / E | LS |09.07.21|Basement layout
350m? updated
D | LS |02.07.21|Basement drainage
/ updated
~ C | LS |04.01.21|Existing drainage
revised
B | LS |23.12.20 |Drainage updated to
new layout
A'| LS [12.04.19 |Drainage updated to
new_layout
No. By Date Revision Details
© Coprright

UNIT 2 YORK HOUSE
EDISON PARK
DORCAN WAY
SWINDON
WILTSHIRE

SN3 3RB

T:01793 619965

E: cec@ColeEasdon
www.ColeEasdon.com

X

COLE EASDON
CONSULTANTS

L2

Gt

Lakehouse Group

/&/I/P

West Pavilion

Lake House, Hayward Green Farm
West Woodhay

Berkshire

Page 72

\ 7

—

\ Drainage Notes
J: e Existing sewer information based on Drawing No.

Oraning Tile

Proposed Drainage Strategy

P0249-L-10-GA-1-051 Drainage Arrangement by
Petherick, Urquhart and Hunt Landscape
Consultancy. Exact route and levels to be
confirmed on site.

Drauing Staus

~-CONSTRUCTION AT GLIENT / CONTRACTOR RISK™~

o Surface water runoff to be managed on site for

Decignea by rawm o Crecke by

LS LS NP/RB
the 1:100year + 40% event. ™ o
¢ Discharge to be limited to the greenfield rate of Jan 2019 1:500 (A2)
4/s using Hydrobrake or similar flow control
device. org e v
o Drainage as shown subject to detailed design.
/ . rm<m_m@m:os= are 5&8_3@ and subject pom 6683/501 G
/ 7/ detailed design.




Fisting 450mm
perforated pipe

“|basement

Displaced 4
groundwater
migrating
around

/ =

Proposed perforated
pipe intercepting
any groundwater
and runoff coming

towards basement

a0l

12628

culverted ditch line

Existing catchpit

- = 5

g

/lon granular drainage |
“llayer to collect

Perforoted pipes 1oid

runoff above basement

ey /

Northem half
of land drains

sSs

\
Q12845
L 1A

\\

Proposed gravity connection
from the western half of the
proposed land drains into
the existing drain, subject to
confirmation of levels

"Swimming
Pond.

g ——

12870

el

53

7 w|perforated pipe |

ke
‘m@o,a,oa

.12

Existing surface water drain

Existing Finished Floor Level
.

+128.00

Existing External Level

= = == == xisting Land Drain

..... {(O------Proposed surface water drain
Proposed land drain with

——0 " perforated pipe (0.5m deep)

i .O!Iu_u_dvomaa land drain with -
perforated pipe (0.9-1.4m deep.

—~—~—~——"Proposed rising main

® Proposed hydrobrake flow .
control

Proposed gravity connection
from the eastern half of the
proposed land drains into
the existing drain, subject
to confirmation of levels

Existing ACO 2 /
Drainage Notes

Existing pond
base area
350m?

o /

09.07.21

Basement layout
updated

02.07.21

Basement drainage
updated

04.01.21

Existing drainage
revised

23.12.20

Drainage updated to
new layout

=N

Existing sewer information based on Drawing No.
P0249-L-10—GA-1-051 Drainage Arrangement by
Petherick, ~ Urquhart and  Hunt  Landscape
Consultancy. Exact route aond levels to be
confirmed on site.

Surface water runoff to be managed on site for
the 1:100year + 40% event.

Discharge to be limited to the greenfield rate of
4/s using Hydrobrake or similar flow control
device.

Drainage as shown subject to detailed design.
Levels shown are indicative and subject to
detailed design.

12.04.19

Drainage updated to

new layout

COLE EASDON
CONSULTANTS

YORK HOUSE
EDISON PARK
DORCAN WAY
SWINDON

3

T 01793 619965

WebSite  www ColeEasdon.com
Email cec@ColeEasdon com

Lakehouse Group

West Pavilion

Lake House, Hayward Green Farm

West Woodhay
Berkshire

Proposed Drainage Strategy

Ty Tty

LS LS NP
Jan 2019 1:500 @ A3
6683/501 E

Page 73



~ ~ ~
~ ~
~ ~
~ ~
~ ~
~ ~
~
~ ~
~ ~
~
e Pipeline location, as per Carter Jonas.
< Drawing }J0014260-19-01F
~
~
~
~
~
~
~N
~
~
~
~
~
~
~
~
~
~N
~
~
~
Outermost limit of pipeline easement, as per ~
rter Jonas Drawing 'J0014260-19-017 S
S
S
~
N
BASEMENT GARAGE PLAN >
~
~
~
ENNENNENE N
E o PLANT
8 7 6 5 3 2 1 ROOM
N " . 4 o i 4 b o ¥ 0 s
3 () () A
Fg HaL
% N T E
/ \
{E TURNTABLE ) g CARLIFT
A !
\
E
4 STORE
0 2 g
11 -

TUNNEL

New structural opening

Existing lightwell to be glazed above

New structural opening

Plant Room reduced to

new corridor to
tunnel

New partition wall

New structural opening

BASEMENT PLAN OF
MAIN HOUSE

Door rehung

Page 74

Adjacent Properties and Boundaries are shown for illustrative purposes
only and have not been surveyed unless otherwise stated.

All areas shown are approximate and should be verified before forming
the basis of a decision

Do not seale other than for Planning Application purposes.

All dimensions must be checked by the contractor before commencing
work on site.

No deviation from this drawing will be permitted without the prior written
consent of the Architect.

The copyright of this drawing remains with the Architect and may not be
reproduced in any form without prior written consent.

Ground Floor Slabs, Foundations, Sub-Structures, ete. All work below
ground level is shown provisionally. Inspection of ground condition is
essential prior to work commencing.

Reassessment is essential when the ground conditions are apparent. and
redesign may be necessary in the light of soil conditions found. The
responsibility for establishing the soil and sub-soil conditions rests with

the contractor.

s ]
Scale 1:100

Note: Drawing based on approved drawings 'PLOSE
Proposed Basement Floor Plan', under planning consent
ref: 15/00673/FUL

A 07/07/21 tssued for planning w
*02/07/21  lssued for information ™
Rev. Date Description Titials
PROJECT Lake House
West Woodhay
TITLE: ‘West Pavilion Basement Floor Plan
As Approved
SCALE: 1:100 @ A1
DATE: July 2021

DRAWING No:  5643/PLO8 Rev A

DRAWN BY: DY

ADAM | ARCHITECTURE

OLD HYDE HOUSE, 75 HYDE STREET
WINCHESTER, HAMPSHIRE, §023 7DW
TELEPHONE: 01962 843843 FACSIMILE: 01962 §43303

www.adamarchitecture.com contact@adamarchitecturc.com

LONDON OFFICE: 6 QUEEN SQUARE, WCIN 3AT
TELEPHONE: 020 7841 0140 FACSIMILE: 01962 843303

ADAM ARCHITFCTURE IS A TRADING NAMF OF ROBERT ADAN ARCHITECTS 1IMITED



j Red line indicates planning application boundary

Sofi landscaped area above
proposed garage

OFFICE OFFICE

/

| FORECOURT
CAR LIFT

Planting Planting

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

EAST SOUTH

ELEVATION ELEVATION

roperties and Boundaries are shown for illustrative purposes

hown are approximate and should be verified before forming

the basis of a decision

for Planning Apy
must be checked by the

Note: Drawing based on approved drawings 'PL12 Rev.

Slate roof-

Conservation raoflights

E Proposed Floor Plan' & 'PLXX Proposed Elevations',
under planning consent ref: 15/00673/FUL

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

Page 75

™

A 07.07.21

* 02071

ROOF PLAN Rev. Dute

PROJECT Lake House
West Woodhay

TITLE:
SCALE: 1:100 @ A1
Glazed screen beh er s
| |
DATE: July 2021

WEST
ELEVATION

DRAWING No:  6038/PL09 Rev A

T | -

7

DRAWN BY: ™

ADAM | ARCHITECTURE

OLD HYDE HOUSE, 75 HYDE
WINCHESTER, HAMPSHIRE,
TELEPHONE: 01962 843843 FACS

NORTH
ELEVATION

LONDON OFFICE: 6 QUEEN SQUARE, WCIN 3AT
TELEPHONE: 020 7841 0140 FACSIMILE: 01962 843303

ADAM ARCHITECTURE IS A TRADING NAME OF ROBERT ADAM ARCHITECTS LIMITED



0 FAINOHdITIL
401440 NOANOT

0410 1482 07

N3INO 9

CELLINTT SLOTLHOMY WYQY LY3E0Y 40 TN ONIGVHL V ST RINLTLEINY WYaV
“Auvnos

£OEE+8 79610 SATIWISOVA

LYE NIDM

Bunw

NOITLVAATH
LSam

ADVAVD

TTEITTIT

seunre
1MNOOAHOT

mnuwmw

ADVAVD

NVId 400Td ANNOYD
JNNOD SINNAL

NOILVAdTH
HLNOS

NOILVAdTH
LSvid

foos oy

T
DNIAIT

A

NVId 4004
NVId 4OOTd LSYId

i

g
H%E‘LAA <
-1

swyByfoos wormaiasuo)

NOILVAATH
HLYON

P o % o« - = o ooz -
3220 E 2 ¥ 8 5‘] = g S gz g gzrery¥EEsE
Pizc |2 : = =2z = o c e e S8 g & §87s8%g
B av > = esl m g e8s =3 8 g s 2 7 Z
2 I z =) m o [ X a g g 2 =
£ Iz z = g A S5 A2 9 =] & 8 B 2.2
g omT =< Z - DR D= B g g = & o B 3
£ Z [ - g £ z T =g
g oz Q ~ 9 z o S g 22323
2 m=c g ~ &1::. ) @ zg 2 g =23
& TRC 7 g ’ 2 2 R
ZcEe FEa g Eggfig?
£ g £ “ g g%e g5 g2
E R = 3 g = sm =z g z 2 z P : g3 ziv®
a o B < = = 2 -] ooa =z B El = -
[ 2 Z mZ P g Ef g = Z3:z
[ % < > m & 2 7 g < + g 2 F 2F 52
g tze 7:' &® ~ S T a4 25 8 3 z 2 E 2 g
Eszo S S g Z =z =z z g z i&8 &CZE
£Em O = B ® - =B . 3 E & S& =513
g oz = = g % 5% ® g 2> 237¢
iz, T = = = g2 . £ e oz £ RN
L= S 5 = 2 > g 3 g -
S ox — 5] 3 2 e & g 2 g5
& o= 2 : 22 c E- £5¢%
® Zx = > Y s g i S22
S ET = 2 B e 4 T i B
& = S = a z 2 g
£ =5 =< m z g =z g = 2 g z
T oA 3 aE FE z: %
[ 9 g9 g & B 28 g
E v, = RN : g F ¢ g z
i 28 P 4 E 25 g 2 E
3 SepH c g = 2 El -1 g a
e 28 = H s 2 = 2
i o m = s g2 = g g
fizn Rm 3 g > = ER- T E 3
g s~ M B g g & & g

Page 76



OFFICE

FORECOURT

Tarmac

LOBRY

OFFICE

TENNIS COURT

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

I

e

onE[ummm

RO

1

T

WEST
ELEVATION

SOUTH
ELEVATION

y
.S

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

ROOF PLAN

|l

EAST
ELEVATION

NORTH
ELEVATION

Adjacent Properties and Boundaries are shown for

strative purposes

ind have not been surveyed unless otherwise stated.
All areas shown are approximate and should be verified before forming
the basis of a decision

 than for Planning Application purposes.
Al

work on site,

mensions must be checked by the contractor before commencing

reproduced in any form without prior written consent

Ground Floor Slabs, Foundations, Sub-Structures, etc. All work below

v in the light of soil cond

d sub-soil con

¢ for establishing the soil

the contractor.

le 1:100

Note: Drawing based on approved drawings 'LH001
East Pavilion - Proposed Plans' & 'LHO01 East Pavilion -
Proposed Elevations', currently seeking planning
approval under ref: 20/00082/WR

A oomn anning ™
v oo maton ™
Rev. Dute
PROJECT Lake House
West Woodhay
TITLE: East Pavilion Floor Plans
& Elevations Secking
Consent
SCALE: 100 @ A1
DATE: July 2021

DRAWING No:  6038/PL10 Rev A

DRAWN BY:

ADAM | ARCHITECTURE

OLD HYDE HOUSE, 75 HYDE STREET
WINCHESTER, HAMPSHIRE, SO23 7DW
TELEPHONE: 01962 843843 FACSIMILE: 01962 843303

www.adamarchitecture.com adamarchitecture

ntact(

LONDON OFFICE: 6 QUEEN SQUARE, WCIN 3AT
TELEPHONE: 020 7841 0140 FACSIMILE: 01962 843303

ADAM ARCHITECTURE IS A TRADING NAME OF ROBERT ADAM ARCHITECTS LIMITED

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 78



	Agenda
	2. Minutes
	4.(1) Application No. and Parish: 21/01843/HOUSE, West Woodhay
	1a. 21-01843-HOUSE  Map
	Full Plans


